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Dear Shareholders of BEC World Public Company Limited, 

In 2023, BEC World Public Company Limited (“BEC Group” or “the Company”) remained 

committed to driving sustainable business growth, following its strategy to grow and 

maintain its leadership in television viewership. Throughout the year, the Company    

presented high-quality drama series, starting with “Royal Doctor”, “ To the Moon and 

Back” and “The Betrayal “ in the early part of the year, and “Love Destiny 2” toward the 

end of the year and was able to generate better income from related businesses, Global 

Content Licensing and Digital Platform business. In addition to the success of the dramas 

throughout the year, 2023 was also a year of success for the movie business, which had 

restarted in the previous year. The Company achieved great success with the film          

“Tee-Yod” which was presented this year.

Board of Directors’ Report
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However, the year 2023 was another challenging year for 

the Company due to the uncertainty and economic problems 

of Thailand, which faced many challenges from the global 

economic slowdown, geopolitical conflicts, the aftermath of 

Thai household debt, and persistently high inflation, which 

led to businesses slowing down their spending domestically 

throughout the year. Nielsen Media Research reported that 

the estimated advertising expenditures on television for 2023 

decreased by 3% compared to the previous year. Although 

“television” remains the main advertising medium and has 

the largest market share of advertising expenditures.

As a result of the overall economic and industry conditions 

mentioned above, BEC Group’s advertising income in 2023 

was at Baht 3,963 million, a decrease of 11%, or Baht            

486 million lower than in 2022. The income from copyright 

and other services was at Baht 690 million, an increase of 

4% from 2022. The Company remains committed to cost 

efficiency and has been able to continuously reduce costs. 

In 2023, the cost of sales and services decreased by 3% from 

2022 to Baht 3,440 million. Selling and administrative         

expenses increased by 11% from 2022 to Baht 881 million 

due to the Company’s expansion into new businesses, as 

well as increased costs for public relations and marketing 

promotion of BEC Group’s dramas and the development of 

its digital platform, 3Plus. The decrease in advertising income 

of Baht 486 million resulted in a 65% decrease in the         

Company’s consolidated net profit attributable to BEC World 

to Baht 210 million in 2023 compared to the previous year.  

However, BEC Group had cash and short-term investment 

equivalents of Baht 3,819 million and net cash flow from 

operating activities of Baht 1,974 million as ending of 2023, 

indicating the Company’s strong financial position.

BEC Group has never stopped learning and proactively   

developing the organization to be ready to face all challenging 

situations. At the same time, the Company also develops 

good corporate governance and manages risks appropriately, 

which has helped the Company become a leading entertainment 

company with good governance for over 54 years and is 

committed to sustainable growth in the future. For this reason, 

in 2023, the Company received an “Excellent” or 5-star 

rating from the Corporate Governance Report of Thai Listed 

Companies 2023 from the Thai Institute of Directors.

On behalf of the Board of Directors, we would like to express 

our sincere gratitude to our shareholders, customers,          

agencies, business partners, artists, Executive Directors, and 

employees for their continuous support. We are committed 

to fully fulfilling our responsibilities to create maximum 

value for our shareholders and all stakeholders fairly. We will 

also continue to care for the environment, society, and 

communities, aiming for sustainable growth together. We 

are determined to drive BEC Group towards achieving           

its vision of becoming “Thailand’s leading content and         

entertainment platform”, building a solid foundation for        

the Company, and seeking new sources of revenue and 

profit growth.

Mr. Somchai Boonnamsiri           
The Chairman of the Board of Directors

Mr. Chatchai Thiamtong         
Secretary of the Board of Directors
Acting President of TV Business
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Executive Summary
• Nielsen Media Research declared that the estimated         

value of television advertising spending in 2023 decreased 
by 3% compared to 2022, with the Thai economy facing
many economic risk factors as well as political uncertainties
both domestically and internationally. As a result, investors 
and entrepreneurs delayed domestic spending throughout
2023. However, despite many challenging factors, the
Company was able to increase its leadership and popularity
in terms of ratings and viewership of the TV business for
the Company’s target group.

• BEC World Public Company Limited (“BEC Group” or “The
Company”) reported a net profit attributable to the         
Company for year 2023 decreasing 65.4% YoY to Baht 210
million with gross profit margin for the year 2023 at 26.1%
from 30.4% in year 2022. The performance of the Company
has turned around to profit consecutively since 3Q/20 amid 
the COVID-19 situation, global economic slow-down,
including Thailand. The Company’s net profit attributable
to the Company in 4Q/23 was at Baht 93.5 million, a
decrease of Baht 55.4 million or 37.2% YoY from 4Q/22
but increased Baht 55.6 million or 146.5% QoQ from 3Q/23. 

• In 2023, the Company expanded its revenue from the
Global Content Licensing and Digital Platform businesses,
amounting to Baht 669.2 million representing an                  
increase of Baht 13 MB or 2% YoY from the year 2022. This
represented 14.4% of BEC Group’s revenue from operation.

• The Company’s cash and short-term investment equivalents 
in the statement of financial position decreased by 3.4%
YoY or Baht 133.5 million to Baht 3,818.7 million as at the
end of 2023, from Baht 3,952.2 million in 2022, despite a
dividend payment totaling Baht 320 million. For the year
2023, the Company had a net cash flow from operating
activities of Baht 1,973.9 million.

Significant Developments in the Year 2023 
In 2023, the Company was able to maintain its leadership in 

the TV business in terms of ratings and number of viewers for 

its target group (Bangkok – Urban, ages 15+) throughout the 

year 2023, starting off with quality dramas such as “You 

Touched My Heart”, “Royal Doctor”, “To the moon and back”, 

“Nobody’s happy if I‘m not”, “The Betrayal” and concluding 

the year with “Love Destiny 2”. The Company continued to 

expand its market base for all of its businesses, by producing 

good and creative contents for society which led to soft-pow-

er at a national level. BEC group had significant business 

developments as follows:

1. Movie Business
Year 2023 was considered to be a year of success and

utmost pride for the Company in the movie business.

“Tee-Yod”, the Company’s second movie, produced in

collaboration with Major Join Film Co., Ltd., which was

based on a true story from social media, starring Nadech

Kugimiya and Rattanawadee Wongthong. “Tee-Yod” was

first screened on October 26, 2023, nationwide.
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The movie was considered a phenomenon for the Thai films 

industry in many aspects:

• The first Thai movie to be shown in the IMAX DMR

system and broke the box office record as the highest

grossing opening for the year.

• The fastest Thai movie to gross Baht 100 million of the

year (within 3 days)

• Thai Film that grossed more than Baht 400 million and

became the 3rd highest grossing Thai film in history

On October 20, 2023, the Company reported to the Stock 

Exchange of Thailand (SET) for the establishment of a joint 

venture between the Company and Major Join Film Co., Ltd. 

under the name “Joint Venture Major Join Film and BEC 

World”, which has the expertise in the production of Thai 

movies. The total capital of the Joint Venture is Baht 82.92 

million, of which 50% belonging to the Company. 

2. Global Content Licensing (GCL)
Business continued to expand its business including

distribution to existing customers focusing on the markets

in Southeast Asia and Northeast Asia. The Company         

expanded in new countries for new customers such as         

23 countries in Latin America and India as well as selling

drama rights in multi broadcasting formats such as              

Simulcast / Date on Broadcasting on famous international

platforms i.e. Netflix, VIU, Amazone Prime, MediaCorp

and Netopia.

3. Digital Platform Business
From the success of the Company’s launch of collaboration 

projects with business partners such as AIS, SCB, and BBL,

with an aimed to increase the number of 3Plus Premium

members by offering special privileges for customers of

business partners who are fans of Channel 3 dramas,

Channel 3 fans can subscribe to the 3Plus Premium package

to watch entertainment content, including popular dramas, 

hit series, and various entertainment programs, and watch 

them first without interruption and without ads, anywhere, 

anytime via the 3Plus website and application, with the

choice to subscribe on a monthly, 6-months, and yearly

basis at a special price.

In 2023, “3Plus Premium”, the Company’s online streaming 

platform, SVOD (Subscription Video on Demand),              

successfully surpassed 100,000 subscriptions as planned. 

The Company is also continuously looking for new            

partnerships.

4. BEC STUDIO Business
On October 2, 2023, BEC STUDIO announced its first overseas

market expansion at the “Unbox Thai Entertainment”, event 

organized by Prime Video, a global video streaming service 

provider. The event was held to launch a new lineup of

movies, dramas, series, and concerts from around the

world. The Company has sold two dramas to Prime Video:

“The Office Game” and “Undercover Chef,” which were

produced by BEC STUDIO and was streaming on the Prime

Video platform in the SEA region during November-           

December 2023.

5. Music Business
The Company released the second song of “Bow Maylada

Susri” following the overwhelmingly positive response to

the first single “CUTE” during the end of last year, with

over 32 million views on Youtube.  As a result, on May 22,

2023, the Company released the second single named

“Nae Nam Hai Pen Fan Rao” with more than 10 million

views on Youtube within just one month after its release.

This achievement was considered another level of success

for the music business under the supervision of BEC World.
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6. The Company received the Innovation Awards for the OTT Platform, an accolade

given in recognition of its success in bringing content originally broadcast on terrestrial television to various streaming platforms. 

This achievement includes excellence in public relations and marketing, both offline and online, leading to the content

becoming immensely popular. The drama “Royal Doctor” was a prime example of the creative efforts submitted to the judging

committee, which led to BEC World receiving this prestigious award.  It is worth noting that BEC World was one of only two

Thai companies to receive awards at the Asia-Pacific Broadcasting+ Awards 2023 held in Singapore on June 8, 2023.

7. ContentAsia Awards
The Company received two prestigious awards at the 4th ContentAsia Awards held on August 24, 2023, at The Athenee Hotel

Bangkok, for the “Outstanding Asian Director Award” for the series “Bad Romeo” and the Best Asian Drama Soundtrack Award”

for the song “I Still Miss You” from the series “Spirits of the Mekong River.” These awards are considered outstanding achievements

in the Asian television industry. The competition featured 123 participants from 12 Asian countries, including China, Hong

Kong, India, Indonesia, Japan, South Korea, Malaysia, the Philippines, Singapore, Taiwan, Thailand, and Vietnam, making it

a significant recognition at the Asian level.

8. Award of Honor for Good Content
On August 26, 2023, the Company received a plaque of honor for the good content from the Ministry of Culture for the drama

series “To the Moon and Back”. The drama series was recognized for its compelling storyline, outstanding performances, and

positive family values.  Additionally, the Company organized a “MEET & GREET With IDOL” event, aiming to promote relationships

and strengthen the family network. The event took place at the National Art Gallery, Ministry of Culture. Moreover, the drama

series “To the Moon and Back” served as a powerful example of Soft Power for Thai society, promoting ethical values, cultural

richness, and fostering strong family bonds.

9. BIG3 TASTE of DRAMA
On November 27, 2023, the Company broadcasted the special program “BIG3 TASTE of DRAMA”, to reaffirm its commitment

to producing content that can appeal to viewers of all ages and on all platforms.  Next year, there would be several big dramas,

including the series “Duang Jai Taewaprom.” The Company also unveiled a new lineup of dramas and variety shows.
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Cinema
Print
Radio
Out of Home
Internet (DAAT)
TV

112,713

Y2022

62,677

116,413

Y2023

60,689

25,729 28,999

15,152 17,521

 3,458 
 3,719  3,033 

 3,033  2,635 
 2,850 

Source: Nielsen Advertising Information Service, DAAT (Digital Advertising Association (Thailand))

Estimated Total Advertising Expenditure By Medium (Million Baht)

* The new rate card of the cinema has been in use since January 2023
** Applying the new rate of the cinema in 2022

The top three industries with the highest advertising spending in 2023 were:

1. Food & Beverage Industry, with a market value of Baht 18,468 million, decreasing 1%YoY.

2. Personal Care and Cosmetic Industry, with a market value of 15,227 million, increasing 4% YoY.

3. Retail Shop/ Food Outlets with a market value of 11,739 million, decreasing 3% YoY.

Copyright © 2024 The Nielsen Company (US), LLC. Con�dential and proprietary. Do not distribute.4 Copyright © 2024 The Nielsen Company (US), LLC. Con�dential and proprietary. Do not distribute.
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Economic Overview and Market Situation

2023. This is in line with the announcement by the National 

Economic and Social Development Council (NESDC) that 

Thailand’s GDP in 2023 would grow at 2.7%, a relatively low 

growth rate compared to many other countries in the region 

and in the same tier.

Nielsen Media Research (“Nielsen”) reported that the               

estimated advertising expenditures (AdEx) for the year 2023 

at Baht 116,413 million, an increase of 3.3%YoY compared to 

Baht 112,713 million in 2022. The media with the highest  

increase was Out of Home media, which increased 15.6% YoY, 

and Internet – DAAT media which increased 12.7% YoY as the 

COVID-19 situation had eased and people were able to return 

to normal life more, coupled with changes in the media        

consumption behavior of the public. The total advertising 

expenditure of the television (“TV”) group was Baht 60,689 

million, a decrease of 3.2% compared to the previous year. 

The TV group was still the main advertising medium and had 

the largest market share of about 52.1%. 

11. Others
• On April 28, 2023, the Annual General Shareholders’ Meeting of the Company for the year 2023 resolved the dividend

payment of Baht 0.16 per share, amounting to Baht 320 million.  The dividend payment was made on May 25, 2023

• On November 3, 2023, the Company reported the Stock Exchange of Thailand of the Resignation of the Director and

Executive, Mr. Surin Krittayaphongphun has resigned from his position as the Director and Executive of the Company and

its subsidiaries, effective from 3rd November 2023.  In this regard, the Company has appointed Mr. Chatchai Thiamtong

(advisor to the Executive Committee) as Acting President of TV Business.

10. Love Destiny 2 FAN MEETING
On November 30, 2023, the Company organized “Love

Destiny 2 FAN MEETING” at TRUE ICON HALL, floor 7,

ICONSIAM. The event was held to allow fans of the drama

“Love Destiny 2” to get closer to the cast, led by Pope

Thanawat, Bella Ranee, and Great Warintorn. Moreover, 

the Company has initiated the management of income

from intellectual property or IP Rights, which was filed

on June 9, 2023, with copyright registration covering 16

works that are used for business purposes. The Department 

of Intellectual Property has received a request for           

copyright registration from BEC World Public Company

Limited related to the “Love Destiny2” drama.

The Thai economy in 2023 continued to face many risk factors 

which recovery was not yet certain from the impact of the 

global economic recession. Notwithstanding the support from 

gradual growth in tourism and private consumption, the   

overall outlook for export and industrial production continued 

to decline. Additionally, high inflation, global financial markets 

volatility, ongoing policy rates increases by the central banks 

as well as higher energy costs induced by geopolitical conflicts 

had resulted in higher financial and production costs. This was 

especially true for China, Thailand’s major trade partner for 

almost every products and the world’s second largest economy, 

which had faced numerous economic problems both short and 

long term.

In addition, another factor that had a significant impact on 

the Thai economy was the political instability in the country 

due to the transition of government. This resulted in a long-term 

decline in government consumption and public investment for 

the year. Entrepreneurs and investors in all sectors in turn lost 

confidence and delayed spending in the country throughout 
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Estimated Total Advertising Expenditure By Medium (Million Baht)

* The new rate card of the cinema has been in use since January 2023
** Applying the new rate of the cinema in 2022

The top three industries with the highest advertising spending in 2023 were:

1. Food & Beverage Industry, with a market value of Baht 18,468 million, decreasing 1%YoY.

2. Personal Care and Cosmetic Industry, with a market value of 15,227 million, increasing 4% YoY.

3. Retail Shop/ Food Outlets with a market value of 11,739 million, decreasing 3% YoY.

Copyright © 2024 The Nielsen Company (US), LLC. Con�dential and proprietary. Do not distribute.4 Copyright © 2024 The Nielsen Company (US), LLC. Con�dential and proprietary. Do not distribute.

18
,4

68

15
,2

27

11
,3

79

5,
59

7

5,
48

1

4,
90

8

4,
44

9

3,
36

5

2,
80

3

2,
70

6

2,
48

5

1,6
20

1,1
63

1,0
49

81
6

73
2

55
1

38
2

38
1

24
6

 & dooF Be
ve

ra
ge

Pe
rs

on
al

 C
ar

e
& 

C
os

m
et

ic

Re
ta

il S
ho

p/
Fo

od
 O

ut
le

ts

M
ed

ia
 &

 
M

ar
ke

tin
g

H
ea

lth
ca

re

Fi
na

nc
e

Au
to

m
ot

iv
e

H
ou

se
ho

ld
 

Pr
od

uc
ts

G
ov

er
nm

en
t

Tr
av

el

Te
le

co
m

El
ec

tr
ic

al
 

Pr
od

uc
ts

Re
al

 E
st

at
e

Pe
tr

ol

C
lo

th
es

 A
nd

 
Ac

ce
ss

or
ie

s

Ag
ric

ul
tu

re

Bu
ild

in
g 

M
at

er
ia

l

H
ou

se
ho

ld
 

Eq
ui

pm
en

t

Ed
uc

at
io

n

En
te

rt
ai

nm
en

t

-1 % + 4% -3 % -1 2% -9 % + 4% -22% -4% -27% + 21 % -25 % -1 3 % -3 % 1 5 % + 1 22% + 20% -5 % -3 4% -24% -1 4%

Top sectors by spending

Source: Nielsen Advertising Information Service; Total Advertising Expenditure includes all industries
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Performance Overview
Economic Overview and Market Situation

2023. This is in line with the announcement by the National 

Economic and Social Development Council (NESDC) that 

Thailand’s GDP in 2023 would grow at 2.7%, a relatively low 

growth rate compared to many other countries in the region 

and in the same tier.

Nielsen Media Research (“Nielsen”) reported that the               

estimated advertising expenditures (AdEx) for the year 2023 

at Baht 116,413 million, an increase of 3.3%YoY compared to 

Baht 112,713 million in 2022. The media with the highest  

increase was Out of Home media, which increased 15.6% YoY, 

and Internet – DAAT media which increased 12.7% YoY as the 

COVID-19 situation had eased and people were able to return 

to normal life more, coupled with changes in the media        

consumption behavior of the public. The total advertising 

expenditure of the television (“TV”) group was Baht 60,689 

million, a decrease of 3.2% compared to the previous year. 

The TV group was still the main advertising medium and had 

the largest market share of about 52.1%. 

11. Others
• On April 28, 2023, the Annual General Shareholders’ Meeting of the Company for the year 2023 resolved the dividend

payment of Baht 0.16 per share, amounting to Baht 320 million.  The dividend payment was made on May 25, 2023

• On November 3, 2023, the Company reported the Stock Exchange of Thailand of the Resignation of the Director and

Executive, Mr. Surin Krittayaphongphun has resigned from his position as the Director and Executive of the Company and

its subsidiaries, effective from 3rd November 2023.  In this regard, the Company has appointed Mr. Chatchai Thiamtong

(advisor to the Executive Committee) as Acting President of TV Business.

10. Love Destiny 2 FAN MEETING
On November 30, 2023, the Company organized “Love

Destiny 2 FAN MEETING” at TRUE ICON HALL, floor 7,

ICONSIAM. The event was held to allow fans of the drama

“Love Destiny 2” to get closer to the cast, led by Pope

Thanawat, Bella Ranee, and Great Warintorn. Moreover, 

the Company has initiated the management of income

from intellectual property or IP Rights, which was filed

on June 9, 2023, with copyright registration covering 16

works that are used for business purposes. The Department 

of Intellectual Property has received a request for           

copyright registration from BEC World Public Company

Limited related to the “Love Destiny2” drama.

The Thai economy in 2023 continued to face many risk factors 

which recovery was not yet certain from the impact of the 

global economic recession. Notwithstanding the support from 

gradual growth in tourism and private consumption, the   

overall outlook for export and industrial production continued 

to decline. Additionally, high inflation, global financial markets 

volatility, ongoing policy rates increases by the central banks 

as well as higher energy costs induced by geopolitical conflicts 

had resulted in higher financial and production costs. This was 

especially true for China, Thailand’s major trade partner for 

almost every products and the world’s second largest economy, 

which had faced numerous economic problems both short and 

long term.

In addition, another factor that had a significant impact on 

the Thai economy was the political instability in the country 

due to the transition of government. This resulted in a long-term 

decline in government consumption and public investment for 

the year. Entrepreneurs and investors in all sectors in turn lost 

confidence and delayed spending in the country throughout 
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COST OF SALES
Cost of sales and services in 2023 amounted to Baht 3,440.4 
million, a decrease of Baht 120.5 million or 3.4% YoY from 
2022 at Baht 3,560.8 million due to lower international series 
acquisition and adjustments in the program schedule, which 
reduced airtime for dramas (after primetime news) to 1.30 
hours instead of the usual 2 hours starting in 1Q/23 and the 
use of re-run dramas to control costs, following the ongoing 
cost control measures.

GROSS PROFIT
Since the decline in BEC Group’s revenues from operation in 
2023 was greater than the decline in BEC Group’s cost of sales, 
BEC Group’s gross profit in 2023 was at Baht 1,212.6 million, 
a decrease of Baht 341.3 million or 22%YoY from Baht 1,553.9 
million in 2022. BEC Group’s gross profit margin in 2023 was 
26.1%, down from 30.4% in the previous year.

While BEC Group remained committed to effective cost         
management and control, the Company had expanded various 
units in recent years, such as BEC Studio, and rehired employees 
to support new businesses. This, along with the cost of public 
relations and promotion of new dramas, and the ongoing 
development of BEC Group’s digital platform 3Plus, had resulted 
in an increase in BEC Group’s selling and administrative        
expenses in 2023 to Baht 881.4 million, an increase of Baht 
85.9 million or 10.8% from Baht 795.4 million in 2022.

OTHER INCOME
Other income of BEC Group for 2023 amounted to Baht 11 
million, decreased by Baht 9.3 million or 45.9% YoY from 2022 
at Baht 21 million which was mainly from profit on exchange rate. 

SHARE OF PROFIT FROM 
INVESTMENTS IN JOINT VENTURES

For the year 2023, the Company recognized the share of 
profit from the “Buaphan Fan Yap“ joint venture according to 
the equity method in line with the investment proportion in 
the amount of Baht 5.1 million. When combined with the share 
of profit in 2022 of Baht 4.1 million, the Company would have 
recognized the share of profit from the “Buaphan Fan Yap“ 
joint venture totaling of Baht 9.2 million. Moreover, in 4Q/23 
the Company recognized the share of profit from the Joint 
Venture Major Join Film and BEC World for the movie “Tee 
Yod” of Baht 61.2 million. Therefore, in 2023, the Company 
recognized share of profit from investments in Joint venture 
of Baht 66.3 million. This was considered another success for 
BEC Group in its continued investment in the film business, in 
line with the Company’s strategy.

FINANCE COSTS 
BEC Group’s finance costs in 2023 was at Baht 110.2 million, 
decreasing Baht 3.4 million or 3% YoY from 2022 at Baht 113.5 
million. 

INCOME TAX EXPENSES
Income tax expenses of BEC Group in 2023 was at Baht 136 
million, increasing Baht 16 million or 13.4% YoY from 2022.  
This was mainly due to the issues of the use of deferred tax 
benefits of subsidiaries, while tax expenses in 2022 were 
lower than normal due to losses from the sale of marketable 
securities that could be used as tax benefits.

CONCLUSION
In conclusion, BEC Group reported a consolidated net profit 
attributable to BEC World of Baht 210 million or decreasing 
Baht 397 million or 65.4% YoY from 2022. In addition, BEC Group 
had a net cash flow from operating activities of Baht 1,973.9 
million, with Cash and short-term investment equivalents of 
Baht 3,818.7 million as at the end of the year 2023.  
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STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

Cash and cash equivalents

Current Assets

Deferred picture rental, picture products, 
plays and copyright charges

Deferred right to use spectrum

Property, plant and equipment

Other Non-current Assets

Other Liabilities

Interest Bearing Debt

Total Shareholders’

Unit : Million Baht

1,387.3
234.3
731.2

2,428.0

841.6

3,818.7
999.9

2,294.7

6,146.6

9,441.2

As of 31 Dec. 2022

1,612.4

239.3
868.9

2,172.4

771.7

3,952.2

9,616.9

As of 31 Dec. 2021

6,241.2

2,343.2

1,032.5
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REVENUE
As a result of the overall economic and industry situation 

mentioned above, BEC Group’s advertising income in 2023 

decreased by Baht 485.5 million or 10.9% YoY from 2022 to at 

Baht 3,963.2 million in 2023 although the company was able 

to increase its leadership and popularity in TV ratings in its 

target group with quality dramas such as “Royal Doctor”, “To 

the Moon and Back” and “Love Destiny 2” which had become 

a driving force for the country’s Soft Power in line with the 

government’s policy of promoting “5F Soft Power. Advertising 

income continued to be the primary source of income for BEC 

Group, accounting for 85.2% of the revenue from operations, 

which was still mainly from the revenue from airtime of          

Channel “33”. 

BEC Group was able to increase its income from copyright and 

other services in 2023 to Baht 689.8 million, an increase of 

Baht 23.8 million or 3.6% YoY from 2022. Income from copyrights 

and other services consisted of revenue from two main       

businesses: Global Content Licensing and Digital Platform 

accounted for 14.4% of BEC Group’s revenues from operation. 

Thanks to the popularity of dramas that had become a social 

Soft Power and the partnership with various partners to increase 

SVOD members.

In summary, BEC Group’s revenue from operation for 2023 

was at Baht 4,652.9 million, a decrease of Baht 461.8 million 

or 9% YoY from Baht 5,114.7 million in 2022

STATEMENT OF INCOME FY2023 FY2022 YoY

(Consolidated) M.THB % M.THB  % (+/-) % 

Revenues from Operation* 4,652.9 100.0% 5,114.7 100.0% (461.8)  -9.0%

Advertising Income 3,963.2 85.2% 4,448.7 87.0% (485.5) -10.9%

 Income from Copyright and Other Services 689.8 14.8% 666.0 13.0% 23.8 3.6%

Total Cost (3,440.4)  -73.9% (3,560.8) -69.6% (120.5) -3.4%

Cost of Sales and Services (3,440.4)  -73.9% (3,560.8) -69.6% (120.5) -3.4%

Gross Profit 1,212.6 26.1% 1,553.9 30.4% (341.3)  -22.0%

Selling and Admin Expenses (881.4) -18.9% (795.4) -15.6% 85.9 10.8%

Other income 11.0 0.2% 21.0 0.4% (10.0) -47.7%

Reverse (Impairment loss) in accordance with

Financial Reporting Standard No. 9 12.0 0.3% 40.9 0.8% 28.9 70.7%

Share of Profit from investments in joint ventures 66.3 1.4% 4.1 0.1% 62.2 1516.8%

Earning Before Interest and Tax [EBIT] 420.5 9.0% 824.4 16.1% (404.0)  -49.0%

Interest income 35.7 0.8% 16.2 0.3% 19.5 120.0%

 Finance costs (110.2) -2.4% (113.5) -2.2% (3.4) -3.0%

Profit before income tax expense 346.0 7.4% 727.1 14.2% (381.1)  -52.4%

Income tax (expense) revenue (136.0) -2.9% (120.0) -2.3% 16.0 13.4%

Profit for the period 210.0 4.5% 607.1 11.9% (397.2) -65.4%

Net Profit attributable to BEC World 210.0 4.5% 607.0 11.9% (397.0)  -65.4%

Non-controlling interests 0.0 0.0% 0.0 0.0% (0.0)  -90.4%

Earning Per Share (Baht) 0.11 0.30 (0.20)  -65.4%

EBITDA  2,124.3 45.7% 2,738.8 53.5% (614.5)  -22.4%

*Revenues from Operation (excluding other income) for analysis in the Management Discussion and Analysis.
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COST OF SALES
Cost of sales and services in 2023 amounted to Baht 3,440.4 
million, a decrease of Baht 120.5 million or 3.4% YoY from 
2022 at Baht 3,560.8 million due to lower international series 
acquisition and adjustments in the program schedule, which 
reduced airtime for dramas (after primetime news) to 1.30 
hours instead of the usual 2 hours starting in 1Q/23 and the 
use of re-run dramas to control costs, following the ongoing 
cost control measures.

GROSS PROFIT
Since the decline in BEC Group’s revenues from operation in 
2023 was greater than the decline in BEC Group’s cost of sales, 
BEC Group’s gross profit in 2023 was at Baht 1,212.6 million, 
a decrease of Baht 341.3 million or 22%YoY from Baht 1,553.9 
million in 2022. BEC Group’s gross profit margin in 2023 was 
26.1%, down from 30.4% in the previous year.

While BEC Group remained committed to effective cost         
management and control, the Company had expanded various 
units in recent years, such as BEC Studio, and rehired employees 
to support new businesses. This, along with the cost of public 
relations and promotion of new dramas, and the ongoing 
development of BEC Group’s digital platform 3Plus, had resulted 
in an increase in BEC Group’s selling and administrative        
expenses in 2023 to Baht 881.4 million, an increase of Baht 
85.9 million or 10.8% from Baht 795.4 million in 2022.

OTHER INCOME
Other income of BEC Group for 2023 amounted to Baht 11 
million, decreased by Baht 9.3 million or 45.9% YoY from 2022 
at Baht 21 million which was mainly from profit on exchange rate. 

SHARE OF PROFIT FROM 
INVESTMENTS IN JOINT VENTURES

For the year 2023, the Company recognized the share of 
profit from the “Buaphan Fan Yap“ joint venture according to 
the equity method in line with the investment proportion in 
the amount of Baht 5.1 million. When combined with the share 
of profit in 2022 of Baht 4.1 million, the Company would have 
recognized the share of profit from the “Buaphan Fan Yap“ 
joint venture totaling of Baht 9.2 million. Moreover, in 4Q/23 
the Company recognized the share of profit from the Joint 
Venture Major Join Film and BEC World for the movie “Tee 
Yod” of Baht 61.2 million. Therefore, in 2023, the Company 
recognized share of profit from investments in Joint venture 
of Baht 66.3 million. This was considered another success for 
BEC Group in its continued investment in the film business, in 
line with the Company’s strategy.

FINANCE COSTS 
BEC Group’s finance costs in 2023 was at Baht 110.2 million, 
decreasing Baht 3.4 million or 3% YoY from 2022 at Baht 113.5 
million. 

INCOME TAX EXPENSES
Income tax expenses of BEC Group in 2023 was at Baht 136 
million, increasing Baht 16 million or 13.4% YoY from 2022.  
This was mainly due to the issues of the use of deferred tax 
benefits of subsidiaries, while tax expenses in 2022 were 
lower than normal due to losses from the sale of marketable 
securities that could be used as tax benefits.

CONCLUSION
In conclusion, BEC Group reported a consolidated net profit 
attributable to BEC World of Baht 210 million or decreasing 
Baht 397 million or 65.4% YoY from 2022. In addition, BEC Group 
had a net cash flow from operating activities of Baht 1,973.9 
million, with Cash and short-term investment equivalents of 
Baht 3,818.7 million as at the end of the year 2023.  
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COST OF SALES
Cost of sales and services in 2023 amounted to Baht 3,440.4 
million, a decrease of Baht 120.5 million or 3.4% YoY from 
2022 at Baht 3,560.8 million due to lower international series 
acquisition and adjustments in the program schedule, which 
reduced airtime for dramas (after primetime news) to 1.30 
hours instead of the usual 2 hours starting in 1Q/23 and the 
use of re-run dramas to control costs, following the ongoing 
cost control measures.

GROSS PROFIT
Since the decline in BEC Group’s revenues from operation in 
2023 was greater than the decline in BEC Group’s cost of sales, 
BEC Group’s gross profit in 2023 was at Baht 1,212.6 million, 
a decrease of Baht 341.3 million or 22%YoY from Baht 1,553.9 
million in 2022. BEC Group’s gross profit margin in 2023 was 
26.1%, down from 30.4% in the previous year.

While BEC Group remained committed to effective cost         
management and control, the Company had expanded various 
units in recent years, such as BEC Studio, and rehired employees 
to support new businesses. This, along with the cost of public 
relations and promotion of new dramas, and the ongoing 
development of BEC Group’s digital platform 3Plus, had resulted 
in an increase in BEC Group’s selling and administrative        
expenses in 2023 to Baht 881.4 million, an increase of Baht 
85.9 million or 10.8% from Baht 795.4 million in 2022.

OTHER INCOME
Other income of BEC Group for 2023 amounted to Baht 11 
million, decreased by Baht 9.3 million or 45.9% YoY from 2022 
at Baht 21 million which was mainly from profit on exchange rate. 

SHARE OF PROFIT FROM 
INVESTMENTS IN JOINT VENTURES

For the year 2023, the Company recognized the share of 
profit from the “Buaphan Fan Yap“ joint venture according to 
the equity method in line with the investment proportion in 
the amount of Baht 5.1 million. When combined with the share 
of profit in 2022 of Baht 4.1 million, the Company would have 
recognized the share of profit from the “Buaphan Fan Yap“ 
joint venture totaling of Baht 9.2 million. Moreover, in 4Q/23 
the Company recognized the share of profit from the Joint 
Venture Major Join Film and BEC World for the movie “Tee 
Yod” of Baht 61.2 million. Therefore, in 2023, the Company 
recognized share of profit from investments in Joint venture 
of Baht 66.3 million. This was considered another success for 
BEC Group in its continued investment in the film business, in 
line with the Company’s strategy.

FINANCE COSTS 
BEC Group’s finance costs in 2023 was at Baht 110.2 million, 
decreasing Baht 3.4 million or 3% YoY from 2022 at Baht 113.5 
million. 

INCOME TAX EXPENSES
Income tax expenses of BEC Group in 2023 was at Baht 136 
million, increasing Baht 16 million or 13.4% YoY from 2022.  
This was mainly due to the issues of the use of deferred tax 
benefits of subsidiaries, while tax expenses in 2022 were 
lower than normal due to losses from the sale of marketable 
securities that could be used as tax benefits.

CONCLUSION
In conclusion, BEC Group reported a consolidated net profit 
attributable to BEC World of Baht 210 million or decreasing 
Baht 397 million or 65.4% YoY from 2022. In addition, BEC Group 
had a net cash flow from operating activities of Baht 1,973.9 
million, with Cash and short-term investment equivalents of 
Baht 3,818.7 million as at the end of the year 2023.  
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REVENUE
As a result of the overall economic and industry situation 

mentioned above, BEC Group’s advertising income in 2023 

decreased by Baht 485.5 million or 10.9% YoY from 2022 to at 

Baht 3,963.2 million in 2023 although the company was able 

to increase its leadership and popularity in TV ratings in its 

target group with quality dramas such as “Royal Doctor”, “To 

the Moon and Back” and “Love Destiny 2” which had become 

a driving force for the country’s Soft Power in line with the 

government’s policy of promoting “5F Soft Power. Advertising 

income continued to be the primary source of income for BEC 

Group, accounting for 85.2% of the revenue from operations, 

which was still mainly from the revenue from airtime of          

Channel “33”. 

BEC Group was able to increase its income from copyright and 

other services in 2023 to Baht 689.8 million, an increase of 

Baht 23.8 million or 3.6% YoY from 2022. Income from copyrights 

and other services consisted of revenue from two main       

businesses: Global Content Licensing and Digital Platform 

accounted for 14.4% of BEC Group’s revenues from operation. 

Thanks to the popularity of dramas that had become a social 

Soft Power and the partnership with various partners to increase 

SVOD members.

In summary, BEC Group’s revenue from operation for 2023 

was at Baht 4,652.9 million, a decrease of Baht 461.8 million 

or 9% YoY from Baht 5,114.7 million in 2022

STATEMENT OF INCOME FY2023 FY2022 YoY

(Consolidated) M.THB % M.THB  % (+/-) % 

Revenues from Operation* 4,652.9 100.0% 5,114.7 100.0% (461.8)  -9.0%

Advertising Income 3,963.2 85.2% 4,448.7 87.0% (485.5) -10.9%

 Income from Copyright and Other Services 689.8 14.8% 666.0 13.0% 23.8 3.6%

Total Cost (3,440.4)  -73.9% (3,560.8) -69.6% (120.5) -3.4%

Cost of Sales and Services (3,440.4)  -73.9% (3,560.8) -69.6% (120.5) -3.4%

Gross Profit 1,212.6 26.1% 1,553.9 30.4% (341.3)  -22.0%

Selling and Admin Expenses (881.4) -18.9% (795.4) -15.6% 85.9 10.8%

Other income 11.0 0.2% 21.0 0.4% (10.0) -47.7%

Reverse (Impairment loss) in accordance with

Financial Reporting Standard No. 9 12.0 0.3% 40.9 0.8% 28.9 70.7%

Share of Profit from investments in joint ventures 66.3 1.4% 4.1 0.1% 62.2 1516.8%

Earning Before Interest and Tax [EBIT] 420.5 9.0% 824.4 16.1% (404.0)  -49.0%

Interest income 35.7 0.8% 16.2 0.3% 19.5 120.0%

 Finance costs (110.2) -2.4% (113.5) -2.2% (3.4) -3.0%

Profit before income tax expense 346.0 7.4% 727.1 14.2% (381.1)  -52.4%

Income tax (expense) revenue (136.0) -2.9% (120.0) -2.3% 16.0 13.4%

Profit for the period 210.0 4.5% 607.1 11.9% (397.2) -65.4%

Net Profit attributable to BEC World 210.0 4.5% 607.0 11.9% (397.0)  -65.4%

Non-controlling interests 0.0 0.0% 0.0 0.0% (0.0)  -90.4%

Earning Per Share (Baht) 0.11 0.30 (0.20)  -65.4%

EBITDA  2,124.3 45.7% 2,738.8 53.5% (614.5)  -22.4%

*Revenues from Operation (excluding other income) for analysis in the Management Discussion and Analysis.
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COST OF SALES
Cost of sales and services in 2023 amounted to Baht 3,440.4 
million, a decrease of Baht 120.5 million or 3.4% YoY from 
2022 at Baht 3,560.8 million due to lower international series 
acquisition and adjustments in the program schedule, which 
reduced airtime for dramas (after primetime news) to 1.30 
hours instead of the usual 2 hours starting in 1Q/23 and the 
use of re-run dramas to control costs, following the ongoing 
cost control measures.

GROSS PROFIT
Since the decline in BEC Group’s revenues from operation in 
2023 was greater than the decline in BEC Group’s cost of sales, 
BEC Group’s gross profit in 2023 was at Baht 1,212.6 million, 
a decrease of Baht 341.3 million or 22%YoY from Baht 1,553.9 
million in 2022. BEC Group’s gross profit margin in 2023 was 
26.1%, down from 30.4% in the previous year.

While BEC Group remained committed to effective cost         
management and control, the Company had expanded various 
units in recent years, such as BEC Studio, and rehired employees 
to support new businesses. This, along with the cost of public 
relations and promotion of new dramas, and the ongoing 
development of BEC Group’s digital platform 3Plus, had resulted 
in an increase in BEC Group’s selling and administrative        
expenses in 2023 to Baht 881.4 million, an increase of Baht 
85.9 million or 10.8% from Baht 795.4 million in 2022.

OTHER INCOME
Other income of BEC Group for 2023 amounted to Baht 11 
million, decreased by Baht 9.3 million or 45.9% YoY from 2022 
at Baht 21 million which was mainly from profit on exchange rate. 

SHARE OF PROFIT FROM 
INVESTMENTS IN JOINT VENTURES

For the year 2023, the Company recognized the share of 
profit from the “Buaphan Fan Yap“ joint venture according to 
the equity method in line with the investment proportion in 
the amount of Baht 5.1 million. When combined with the share 
of profit in 2022 of Baht 4.1 million, the Company would have 
recognized the share of profit from the “Buaphan Fan Yap“ 
joint venture totaling of Baht 9.2 million. Moreover, in 4Q/23 
the Company recognized the share of profit from the Joint 
Venture Major Join Film and BEC World for the movie “Tee 
Yod” of Baht 61.2 million. Therefore, in 2023, the Company 
recognized share of profit from investments in Joint venture 
of Baht 66.3 million. This was considered another success for 
BEC Group in its continued investment in the film business, in 
line with the Company’s strategy.

FINANCE COSTS 
BEC Group’s finance costs in 2023 was at Baht 110.2 million, 
decreasing Baht 3.4 million or 3% YoY from 2022 at Baht 113.5 
million. 

INCOME TAX EXPENSES
Income tax expenses of BEC Group in 2023 was at Baht 136 
million, increasing Baht 16 million or 13.4% YoY from 2022.  
This was mainly due to the issues of the use of deferred tax 
benefits of subsidiaries, while tax expenses in 2022 were 
lower than normal due to losses from the sale of marketable 
securities that could be used as tax benefits.

CONCLUSION
In conclusion, BEC Group reported a consolidated net profit 
attributable to BEC World of Baht 210 million or decreasing 
Baht 397 million or 65.4% YoY from 2022. In addition, BEC Group 
had a net cash flow from operating activities of Baht 1,973.9 
million, with Cash and short-term investment equivalents of 
Baht 3,818.7 million as at the end of the year 2023.  
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In addition, BEC Group had net cash used in financing activities 

amounting to Baht 380.5 million as at December 31, 2023, 

mainly due to the payment of dividends of Baht 320 million. 

In the previous year, there was a repayment of matured        

debentures and cash proceeds from the issuance of two new 

series of debentures.  

As at December 31, 2023, BEC Group had a net decrease         

in cash and cash equivalents of Baht 1,135.8 million from 

December 31, 2022. This was mainly due to the use of cash 

for investment in short-term deposits of Baht 1,008 million. As 

a result, cash and cash equivalents at the end of 2023 was at 

Baht 2,810.7 million, comparing to Baht 3,952.2 million at the 

beginning of the year.

The Company has instituted a credit term policy with business 

partners or customers as follows:

1. New Customers: No credit term. There must be a prepayment

before broadcasting or providing services.

2. Existing Customers: Credit terms between 30 - 45 days

except for some customers which are government agencies 

whose credit terms might be longer than the standard.

In 2023, the Company’s average collection period from          

trade accounts receivable was 38 days which is within the 

Company’s policy. 
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MANAGEMENT OUTLOOK ON FUTURE OPERATIONS

The year 2024 will be another challenging year for the Company. 

The Thai Bankers Association predicts that the Thai economy 

in 2024 will grow slowly and expand within a range of 2.8-3.3%. 

This growth will be supported by economic stimulus measures, 

such as the Easy E-Receipt Tax Scheme and the continued 

recovery of the tourism sector, which is expected to see the 

number of foreign tourists increase to 33-34 million. In addition, 

the government is focusing on and accelerating its efforts to 

address the problem of informal sector loan and household 

debt in Thailand, which is at a high level, mainly from mortgages 

and personal consumption loans. There is also pressure from 

global economic uncertainties, resulting from geopolitical 

situation including Israel and Hamas conflict which led to 

attacks on cargo ships in the Suez Canal and the Red Sea, 

pushing up freight rates and putting pressure on production 

costs while the war between Russia and Ukraine has not yet 

resolved. These uncertainties have exacerbated the slowdown 

in the global economy and made it necessary to monitor the 

impact on Thai exports which rely on the European markets. 

The Thai economy will be affected both directly and indirectly, 

so it is important to closely monitor the situation, both the 

slowdown in exports and the key uncertainty of 2024 fiscal policies.

Despite the overall uncertainties, the Company still sees         

opportunities to grow its business steadily. The Company is 

committed to developing its organizational capabilities          

proactively. Therefore, it focuses on developing its internal 

personnel to have the knowledge and readiness to produce 

quality content that is popular with the target audience.           

The Company also aims to have a variety of content                 

distribution channels to reach new audiences as much as 

possible. Additionally, the Company is expanding into new 

businesses beyond its core television business. This is in line 

with the Company’s vision to be “Thailand’s leading content 

and entertainment platform” under the “Single Content,    

Multiple Platforms” strategy. The Company sets the following 

growth targets for each of its business groups:

• BEC Group operates as a leader in the television business

market, with an aim to retain its existing audience and

expand its audience base to new groups.

• The Company aims to expand its Global Content Licensing

Business to new territories and increase sales from existing 

customers. BEC Group’s 3Plus digital platform is expanding 

its audience base to younger generations who still watch

Channel 3 content but may not watch it primarily through

television. The platform is also organizing marketing activities

to increase the number of subscribers to its Subscription

Video on Demand (SVoD) service. It is also used to promote 

Channel 3’s actors to expand 3Plus’s audience base which

could lead to advertisements of customers’ products and

services in more diversified channels.

• BEC Studio Company Limited (“BEC Studio”), a subsidiary

of the BEC Group, operates as a fully integrated content

producer including producing dramas for broadcast             

on Channel 3 and content production, both original          

contents and on-demand Contents for both domestic and

international platform providers and the 3Plus platform.
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Statement of Cash Flows As of December 31, As of December 31,

(Unit: million baht) 2023 2022

Net Cash Flows Provided from (Used In) Operating Activities 1,973.9 2,719.6

Net Cash Flows Provided from (Used In) Investing Activities (2,729.2) (1,913.9)

Net Cash Flows Provided from (Used In) Financing Activities (380.5) (1,571.6)

Net Increase (Decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalents (1,135.8) (765.9)

Cash and Cash Equivalents at the Beginning of the Period 3,952.2 4,718.2

Less cash and cash equivalents transferred from -5.7 -
 the dissolution of the subsidiaries 

Cash and Cash Equivalents at the Ending of the Period 2,810.7 3,952.2

For the statement of cash flows for the year ended December 

31, 2023, BEC Group had net cash from operating activities of 

Baht 1,973.9 million, decreasing Baht 745.7 million or 27.4% 

from the previous year due to lower net profit for the year 

2023 as well as lower depreciation and amortization expenses 

for the year.

Net cash used in investing activities was at Baht 2,729.2 million, 

an increase of Baht 815.3 million or 42.6% from Baht 1,913.9 

million as at December 31, 2022. This was mainly due to the 

increase in cash used for investment in short-term deposits of 

Baht 1,008 million, while cash used in pictures rental, picture 

products, plays and copyright charges decreased by Baht 98.2 

million.
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ASSETS
As at December 31, 2023, BEC Group had total assets of Baht 
9,441.2 million, a decrease of Baht 175.7 million or 1.8% YoY 
from Baht 9,616.9 million as of December 31, 2022. This was 
mainly due to the decrease in cash and cash equivalents from 
the payment of dividends of Baht 320 million.

Total current assets decreased by Baht 63.6 million or 1.3%YoY 
to Baht 4,660.3 million. This was mainly due to the decrease 
in cash and short-term investments equivalents of Baht 133.5 
million, from Baht 3,952.2 million as of December 31, 2022 to 
Baht 3,818.7 million as of December 31, 2023. This was due 
to the payment of dividends to shareholders at a rate of 0.16 
baht per share, totaling Baht 320 million. However, other 
current assets increased by 9.1% from Baht 771.7 million to 
Baht 841.6 million baht this year, mainly due to the increase 
in current income tax assets.

Total non-current assets decreased by Baht 112.1 million baht 
or 2.3% to Baht 4,780.8 million as at December 31, 2023. This 
was mainly due to the decrease in non-current assets during 
the year 2023, such as deferred rights to use spectrum, deferred 
tax assets and other non-current assets. The decrease was 
notwithstanding the increase in investments in joint ventures 
from investments in “Major Join Film and BEC World” and the 
increase in deferred pictures rental, picture products, plays 
and copyright charges during the year.

LIABILITIES
As at December 31, 2023, BEC Group had total liabilities of 
Baht 3,294.6 million baht, a decrease of Baht 81.1 million or 
2.4% from Baht 3,375.7 million at the end of 2022.  

Interest-bearing debt decreased by Baht 48.5 million or 2.1% 
from Baht 2,343.2 million at the end of 2022 to Baht 2,294.7 
million as at December 31, 2023.  Most of the interest-bearing 
debt were from the debentures issued in 2022.

SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY
As at December 31, 2023, BEC Group had a Total Shareholders’ 
Equity of Baht 6,146.6 million, decreasing Baht 94.6 million or 
1.5% from Baht 6,241.2 million as at December 31, 2022. The 
decrease in shareholders’ equity was due to the payment of 
dividends of Baht 320 million baht, which was more than the 
net profit for the year of Baht 210 million. 

Based on the statement of financial position, the Company 
had a strong financial position with a Current Ratio of 6.12 
times, Total Debt to Equity Ratio of 0.54 times, Interest-Bearing 
Debt to Equity Ratio of 0.37 times, and Net Interest-Bearing 
debt to Equity Ratio of -0.25 times. 

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
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In addition, BEC Group had net cash used in financing activities 

amounting to Baht 380.5 million as at December 31, 2023, 

mainly due to the payment of dividends of Baht 320 million. 

In the previous year, there was a repayment of matured        

debentures and cash proceeds from the issuance of two new 

series of debentures.  

As at December 31, 2023, BEC Group had a net decrease         

in cash and cash equivalents of Baht 1,135.8 million from 

December 31, 2022. This was mainly due to the use of cash 

for investment in short-term deposits of Baht 1,008 million. As 

a result, cash and cash equivalents at the end of 2023 was at 

Baht 2,810.7 million, comparing to Baht 3,952.2 million at the 

beginning of the year.

The Company has instituted a credit term policy with business 

partners or customers as follows:

1. New Customers: No credit term. There must be a prepayment

before broadcasting or providing services.

2. Existing Customers: Credit terms between 30 - 45 days

except for some customers which are government agencies 

whose credit terms might be longer than the standard.

In 2023, the Company’s average collection period from          

trade accounts receivable was 38 days which is within the 

Company’s policy. 
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MANAGEMENT OUTLOOK ON FUTURE OPERATIONS

The year 2024 will be another challenging year for the Company. 

The Thai Bankers Association predicts that the Thai economy 

in 2024 will grow slowly and expand within a range of 2.8-3.3%. 

This growth will be supported by economic stimulus measures, 

such as the Easy E-Receipt Tax Scheme and the continued 

recovery of the tourism sector, which is expected to see the 

number of foreign tourists increase to 33-34 million. In addition, 

the government is focusing on and accelerating its efforts to 

address the problem of informal sector loan and household 

debt in Thailand, which is at a high level, mainly from mortgages 

and personal consumption loans. There is also pressure from 

global economic uncertainties, resulting from geopolitical 

situation including Israel and Hamas conflict which led to 

attacks on cargo ships in the Suez Canal and the Red Sea, 

pushing up freight rates and putting pressure on production 

costs while the war between Russia and Ukraine has not yet 

resolved. These uncertainties have exacerbated the slowdown 

in the global economy and made it necessary to monitor the 

impact on Thai exports which rely on the European markets. 

The Thai economy will be affected both directly and indirectly, 

so it is important to closely monitor the situation, both the 

slowdown in exports and the key uncertainty of 2024 fiscal policies.

Despite the overall uncertainties, the Company still sees         

opportunities to grow its business steadily. The Company is 

committed to developing its organizational capabilities          

proactively. Therefore, it focuses on developing its internal 

personnel to have the knowledge and readiness to produce 

quality content that is popular with the target audience.           

The Company also aims to have a variety of content                 

distribution channels to reach new audiences as much as 

possible. Additionally, the Company is expanding into new 

businesses beyond its core television business. This is in line 

with the Company’s vision to be “Thailand’s leading content 

and entertainment platform” under the “Single Content,    

Multiple Platforms” strategy. The Company sets the following 

growth targets for each of its business groups:

• BEC Group operates as a leader in the television business

market, with an aim to retain its existing audience and

expand its audience base to new groups.

• The Company aims to expand its Global Content Licensing

Business to new territories and increase sales from existing 

customers. BEC Group’s 3Plus digital platform is expanding 

its audience base to younger generations who still watch

Channel 3 content but may not watch it primarily through

television. The platform is also organizing marketing activities

to increase the number of subscribers to its Subscription

Video on Demand (SVoD) service. It is also used to promote 

Channel 3’s actors to expand 3Plus’s audience base which

could lead to advertisements of customers’ products and

services in more diversified channels.

• BEC Studio Company Limited (“BEC Studio”), a subsidiary

of the BEC Group, operates as a fully integrated content

producer including producing dramas for broadcast             

on Channel 3 and content production, both original          

contents and on-demand Contents for both domestic and

international platform providers and the 3Plus platform.
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In addition, BEC Group had net cash used in financing activities 

amounting to Baht 380.5 million as at December 31, 2023, 

mainly due to the payment of dividends of Baht 320 million. 

In the previous year, there was a repayment of matured        

debentures and cash proceeds from the issuance of two new 

series of debentures.  

As at December 31, 2023, BEC Group had a net decrease         

in cash and cash equivalents of Baht 1,135.8 million from 

December 31, 2022. This was mainly due to the use of cash 

for investment in short-term deposits of Baht 1,008 million. As 

a result, cash and cash equivalents at the end of 2023 was at 
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MANAGEMENT OUTLOOK ON FUTURE OPERATIONS
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Statement of Cash Flows As of December 31, As of December 31,

(Unit: million baht) 2023 2022

Net Cash Flows Provided from (Used In) Operating Activities 1,973.9 2,719.6

Net Cash Flows Provided from (Used In) Investing Activities (2,729.2) (1,913.9)

Net Cash Flows Provided from (Used In) Financing Activities (380.5) (1,571.6)

Net Increase (Decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalents (1,135.8) (765.9)

Cash and Cash Equivalents at the Beginning of the Period 3,952.2 4,718.2

Less cash and cash equivalents transferred from -5.7 -
 the dissolution of the subsidiaries 

Cash and Cash Equivalents at the Ending of the Period 2,810.7 3,952.2

For the statement of cash flows for the year ended December 

31, 2023, BEC Group had net cash from operating activities of 

Baht 1,973.9 million, decreasing Baht 745.7 million or 27.4% 

from the previous year due to lower net profit for the year 

2023 as well as lower depreciation and amortization expenses 

for the year.

Net cash used in investing activities was at Baht 2,729.2 million, 

an increase of Baht 815.3 million or 42.6% from Baht 1,913.9 

million as at December 31, 2022. This was mainly due to the 

increase in cash used for investment in short-term deposits of 

Baht 1,008 million, while cash used in pictures rental, picture 

products, plays and copyright charges decreased by Baht 98.2 

million.
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ASSETS
As at December 31, 2023, BEC Group had total assets of Baht 
9,441.2 million, a decrease of Baht 175.7 million or 1.8% YoY 
from Baht 9,616.9 million as of December 31, 2022. This was 
mainly due to the decrease in cash and cash equivalents from 
the payment of dividends of Baht 320 million.

Total current assets decreased by Baht 63.6 million or 1.3%YoY 
to Baht 4,660.3 million. This was mainly due to the decrease 
in cash and short-term investments equivalents of Baht 133.5 
million, from Baht 3,952.2 million as of December 31, 2022 to 
Baht 3,818.7 million as of December 31, 2023. This was due 
to the payment of dividends to shareholders at a rate of 0.16 
baht per share, totaling Baht 320 million. However, other 
current assets increased by 9.1% from Baht 771.7 million to 
Baht 841.6 million baht this year, mainly due to the increase 
in current income tax assets.

Total non-current assets decreased by Baht 112.1 million baht 
or 2.3% to Baht 4,780.8 million as at December 31, 2023. This 
was mainly due to the decrease in non-current assets during 
the year 2023, such as deferred rights to use spectrum, deferred 
tax assets and other non-current assets. The decrease was 
notwithstanding the increase in investments in joint ventures 
from investments in “Major Join Film and BEC World” and the 
increase in deferred pictures rental, picture products, plays 
and copyright charges during the year.

LIABILITIES
As at December 31, 2023, BEC Group had total liabilities of 
Baht 3,294.6 million baht, a decrease of Baht 81.1 million or 
2.4% from Baht 3,375.7 million at the end of 2022.  

Interest-bearing debt decreased by Baht 48.5 million or 2.1% 
from Baht 2,343.2 million at the end of 2022 to Baht 2,294.7 
million as at December 31, 2023.  Most of the interest-bearing 
debt were from the debentures issued in 2022.

SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY
As at December 31, 2023, BEC Group had a Total Shareholders’ 
Equity of Baht 6,146.6 million, decreasing Baht 94.6 million or 
1.5% from Baht 6,241.2 million as at December 31, 2022. The 
decrease in shareholders’ equity was due to the payment of 
dividends of Baht 320 million baht, which was more than the 
net profit for the year of Baht 210 million. 

Based on the statement of financial position, the Company 
had a strong financial position with a Current Ratio of 6.12 
times, Total Debt to Equity Ratio of 0.54 times, Interest-Bearing 
Debt to Equity Ratio of 0.37 times, and Net Interest-Bearing 
debt to Equity Ratio of -0.25 times. 

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
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In addition, BEC Group had net cash used in financing activities 

amounting to Baht 380.5 million as at December 31, 2023, 

mainly due to the payment of dividends of Baht 320 million. 

In the previous year, there was a repayment of matured        

debentures and cash proceeds from the issuance of two new 

series of debentures.  

As at December 31, 2023, BEC Group had a net decrease         

in cash and cash equivalents of Baht 1,135.8 million from 

December 31, 2022. This was mainly due to the use of cash 

for investment in short-term deposits of Baht 1,008 million. As 

a result, cash and cash equivalents at the end of 2023 was at 

Baht 2,810.7 million, comparing to Baht 3,952.2 million at the 

beginning of the year.

The Company has instituted a credit term policy with business 

partners or customers as follows:

1. New Customers: No credit term. There must be a prepayment

before broadcasting or providing services.

2. Existing Customers: Credit terms between 30 - 45 days

except for some customers which are government agencies 

whose credit terms might be longer than the standard.

In 2023, the Company’s average collection period from          

trade accounts receivable was 38 days which is within the 

Company’s policy. 
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MANAGEMENT OUTLOOK ON FUTURE OPERATIONS

The year 2024 will be another challenging year for the Company. 

The Thai Bankers Association predicts that the Thai economy 

in 2024 will grow slowly and expand within a range of 2.8-3.3%. 

This growth will be supported by economic stimulus measures, 

such as the Easy E-Receipt Tax Scheme and the continued 

recovery of the tourism sector, which is expected to see the 

number of foreign tourists increase to 33-34 million. In addition, 

the government is focusing on and accelerating its efforts to 

address the problem of informal sector loan and household 

debt in Thailand, which is at a high level, mainly from mortgages 

and personal consumption loans. There is also pressure from 

global economic uncertainties, resulting from geopolitical 

situation including Israel and Hamas conflict which led to 

attacks on cargo ships in the Suez Canal and the Red Sea, 

pushing up freight rates and putting pressure on production 

costs while the war between Russia and Ukraine has not yet 

resolved. These uncertainties have exacerbated the slowdown 

in the global economy and made it necessary to monitor the 

impact on Thai exports which rely on the European markets. 

The Thai economy will be affected both directly and indirectly, 

so it is important to closely monitor the situation, both the 

slowdown in exports and the key uncertainty of 2024 fiscal policies.

Despite the overall uncertainties, the Company still sees         

opportunities to grow its business steadily. The Company is 

committed to developing its organizational capabilities          

proactively. Therefore, it focuses on developing its internal 

personnel to have the knowledge and readiness to produce 

quality content that is popular with the target audience.           

The Company also aims to have a variety of content                 

distribution channels to reach new audiences as much as 

possible. Additionally, the Company is expanding into new 

businesses beyond its core television business. This is in line 

with the Company’s vision to be “Thailand’s leading content 

and entertainment platform” under the “Single Content,    

Multiple Platforms” strategy. The Company sets the following 

growth targets for each of its business groups:

• BEC Group operates as a leader in the television business

market, with an aim to retain its existing audience and

expand its audience base to new groups.

• The Company aims to expand its Global Content Licensing

Business to new territories and increase sales from existing 

customers. BEC Group’s 3Plus digital platform is expanding 

its audience base to younger generations who still watch

Channel 3 content but may not watch it primarily through

television. The platform is also organizing marketing activities

to increase the number of subscribers to its Subscription

Video on Demand (SVoD) service. It is also used to promote 

Channel 3’s actors to expand 3Plus’s audience base which

could lead to advertisements of customers’ products and

services in more diversified channels.

• BEC Studio Company Limited (“BEC Studio”), a subsidiary

of the BEC Group, operates as a fully integrated content

producer including producing dramas for broadcast             

on Channel 3 and content production, both original          

contents and on-demand Contents for both domestic and

international platform providers and the 3Plus platform.
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DRIVING BUSINESS FOR BEC GROUP’S SUSTAINABILITY
The BEC Group has recognized that achieving goals and sustainability in business requires more than just good operating results. 

It involves building businesses on the foundation of good corporate governance, social responsibility, and environmental care, as 

well as meeting the expectations of stakeholders from upstream to downstream, both directly and indirectly throughout the value 

chain of business operations. This is to make BEC Group a ‘Total Entertainment Company’ that can grow alongside society,           

communities, and the environment sustainably.  In 2023, BEC Group carried out various activities related to Environment, Social, 

and Governance (ESG) as follows:

Environmental Aspects 
• On March 10, 2023, Channel 3 participated in a seminar

and visited “Klang Island Community Comprehensive 

Waste Management Model Project” at the Queen’s 80th

Anniversary Park, 100 Years of the Ministry of Transport 

(Sukhumvit 48/1). Klang Island community is a model 

community for waste management that receives the         

cooperation of every household in the community for 

segregation and utilization of waste. As a result, the amount 

of waste in sample household can be reduced by more 

than 50% or approximately 4.9 tons per year and reduce 

expenses within the community approximately Baht 

107,400 per year. 

• Channel 3 Volunteers To Do Good, Planting trees, and

Creating Food Sources for Wildlife” in Nakhon Ratchasima 

Province from August 18 to 19 2023. Executives and voluntary

employees joined hands to plant trees, enhancing the

greenery of the forest. Together, the employee volunteers

improved grasslands, eradicated weeds, and learned how

to create artificial salt licks to provide essential minerals

for wildlife. Additionally, they gained insights into the

natural ecosystem. Furthermore, employees participated

in almsgiving, received Dhamma teachings, and received

blessings from Luang Pho Kanha Sukkamo at Wat Pa Sap

Thawi Thammaram, Wang Nam Khiao District, Nakhon

Ratchasima Province

• From the success of the movie business, “Tee Yod”, in

2024, the Company plans to resell this movie rights to

other platforms both domestic and international and plans 

to produce up to 2-3 more movies.

Beyond maintaining television advertising revenue, the           

Company seeks long-term growth through diversified income 

streams. This includes revenue from trending digital platforms, 

content licensing both domestically and internationally,          

expanding music business, and leveraging intellectual            

property like “Love Destiny 2” drama (copyrighted characters, 

costumes, motto, and trademark). The Company will launch 

artist management in 2024.  
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Social and Community Aspects  
• BEC Group and Channel 3 recognized the significance of

education and human rights of underprivileged students 

in remote schools. Therefore, on May 19, 2023, BEC Group 

organized an event called “Channel 3 Volunteers to            

Do Good for the Border Patrol Police School” with the               

participation of 50 volunteers. The event took place at Ban 

Phraek Ta Kro Border Patrol Police School, Hua Hin District, 

Prachuap Khiri Khan Province. The Border Patrol Police 

Unit cooperated in providing support for the students, 

aiming to ensure equitable opportunities for education. 

During the event, the volunteers sponsored the printing of 

students’ workbooks worth Baht 10,000 and donated        

essential items. Additionally, they arranged games and 

performances to promote holistic development and foster 

a sense of unity among the students.

• On June 23, 2023, the Economics Cultural Division of the

Ministry of Culture, responsible for a public relations project

promoting the creative cultural industry encompassing 5F

(Food, Film, Festival, Fighting, Fashion), took the initiative 

to boost interest among the Chinese tourists by introducing

the Royal Doctor drama PR in China. The aim was to create

awareness and attraction for this cultural gem, offering a

unique guideline for Chinese tourists visiting Thailand to

dress in the style of the drama and helped promote a

wider recognition and popularity of the Royal Doctor

drama within China.

• BEC Group organized the “CH3 News Creator Program,

Gen 2”, which was open for the general public,                    

students, and scholars who had a passion for journalism.

Participants had the opportunity to receive training in mass 

communication, allowing them to learn and hone their

skills in both the theoretical and practical aspects of the 

news industry. The program aimed to empower participants 

with the knowledge and expertise necessary to pursue a 

career in journalism in the future. Training sessions was 

from August 2 to October 30, 2023

Governance Aspects
• BEC World Public Company Limited received a rating of

“excellent” or 5 stars for the year 2023 from the Corporate 

Governance Report of Thai Listed Companies 2023 prepared 

by the Thai Institute of Directors which was announced on 

October 31, 2023.

• Publications on good corporate governance contents via

the Company’s E-magazine every week, such as PDPA,

which included the rights to request access and a copy of

personal data, and “Act on 3” with New Year’s Resolutions, 

“Transparency, No Corruption”, etc.

Best regards, 

(Piriyadit Choophungart) 
Executive Vice President, Finance & Accounting 
BEC World Public Company Limited 
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DRIVING BUSINESS FOR BEC GROUP’S SUSTAINABILITY
The BEC Group has recognized that achieving goals and sustainability in business requires more than just good operating results. 

It involves building businesses on the foundation of good corporate governance, social responsibility, and environmental care, as 

well as meeting the expectations of stakeholders from upstream to downstream, both directly and indirectly throughout the value 

chain of business operations. This is to make BEC Group a ‘Total Entertainment Company’ that can grow alongside society,           

communities, and the environment sustainably.  In 2023, BEC Group carried out various activities related to Environment, Social, 

and Governance (ESG) as follows:

Environmental Aspects 
• On March 10, 2023, Channel 3 participated in a seminar

and visited “Klang Island Community Comprehensive 

Waste Management Model Project” at the Queen’s 80th

Anniversary Park, 100 Years of the Ministry of Transport 

(Sukhumvit 48/1). Klang Island community is a model 

community for waste management that receives the         

cooperation of every household in the community for 

segregation and utilization of waste. As a result, the amount 

of waste in sample household can be reduced by more 

than 50% or approximately 4.9 tons per year and reduce 

expenses within the community approximately Baht 

107,400 per year. 

• Channel 3 Volunteers To Do Good, Planting trees, and

Creating Food Sources for Wildlife” in Nakhon Ratchasima 

Province from August 18 to 19 2023. Executives and voluntary

employees joined hands to plant trees, enhancing the

greenery of the forest. Together, the employee volunteers

improved grasslands, eradicated weeds, and learned how

to create artificial salt licks to provide essential minerals

for wildlife. Additionally, they gained insights into the

natural ecosystem. Furthermore, employees participated

in almsgiving, received Dhamma teachings, and received

blessings from Luang Pho Kanha Sukkamo at Wat Pa Sap

Thawi Thammaram, Wang Nam Khiao District, Nakhon

Ratchasima Province

• From the success of the movie business, “Tee Yod”, in

2024, the Company plans to resell this movie rights to

other platforms both domestic and international and plans 

to produce up to 2-3 more movies.

Beyond maintaining television advertising revenue, the           

Company seeks long-term growth through diversified income 

streams. This includes revenue from trending digital platforms, 

content licensing both domestically and internationally,          

expanding music business, and leveraging intellectual            

property like “Love Destiny 2” drama (copyrighted characters, 

costumes, motto, and trademark). The Company will launch 

artist management in 2024.  
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KEY FINANCIAL RATIOS 

Financial Ratios  2023 2022

Current Ratio (Times) 6.12 6.02

EBITDA to Revenue (%) 45.7% 53.5%

Net Profit to Revenue (%) 4.5% 11.9%

Book Value Per Share (Baht/Share) 3.07 3.12

Earnings Per Share (Baht/Share)  0.11 0.30

Return on Total Assets (%) 2.2% 6.1%

Return on Equity (%)  3.4% 9.8%

Total Debt to Equity (Times) 0.54 0.54

Interest Bearing Debt to Equity (Times)  0.37 0.38

Net Interest-Bearing Debt to Equity (Times) -0.25 -0.26

Net Interest-Bearing Debt to EBITDA (Times) -0.72 -0.59

Note : 

Current ratio  = Current assets divided by current liabilities 

EBITDA to sales revenue  =  EBITDA divided by sales revenue 

Net profit on sale revenue =  Net profit divided by sales revenue 

Book Value Per Share  =  Total Shareholders’ Equity divided by number of shares 

Earnings Per Share  =  Profit (Loss) attribute to equity holders of the parent divided by 

 number of shares 

Return on total assets  =  Net profit divided by average total assets 

Return on equity  =  Net profit divided by average total shareholder’s equity 

Interest Bearing Debt to Shareholders’ Equity =  Interest Bearing Debt divided by shareholder’s equity 

Net Interest-Bearing Debt to Equity  =  Interest Bearing Debt net from cash and cash equivalent 

 and current investments divided by shareholder’s equity 

Net Interest-Bearing Debt to EBITDA =  Interest Bearing Debt net from cash and cash equivalent 

 and current investments divided by EBITDA 

EBITDA =  Earnings Before Interest, Tax, Depreciation and Amortization 
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Report of The Board of Director’s Responsibilities for The Financial 
Statements
The attached financial statements comprised of Statements of Financial Position, Statements of Income, Statements of 
Comprehensive Income, Statement of Changes in Shareholders’ Equity, Statement of Cash Flows and Notes to the Financial 
Statements. The management prepared the financial statements in conformity with generally accepted financial report 
principles and appropriate accounting policies and applied the said principles consistently. In addition, the management 
also made the financial statements on their best estimates and judgments with reasonable, adequate and appropriate 
disclosure of material issues in the Notes to the Financial Statements to reflect the accurate and transparent financial 
status, performance, and cash flow, which will be beneficial to any person reading the said financial statements.

The Board of Directors has set up and maintained effective internal control system, risk management system, and  
corporate governance system, which have been designed to provide the management with reasonable assurance that 
transactions are recorded accurately, completely and reliably. In addition, the important information is adequately  
disclosed in order that, the assets are safeguarded, and that material frauds and malpractices are precluded.

The Board of Directors also appointed the Audit and Risk Committee, which comprises of independent non-executive 
directors to review the accuracy and sufficiency of the Company’s financial reports and to ensure the adequacy and the 
efficiency of the internal control systems of the Company. Opinion of the Audit Committee is shown in Audit Committee’s 
Report published in this 56-1 One Report.

BEC World Plc. also arranged to have independent certified public accountant as auditor auditing the financial statements. 
The auditor performed audits of the financial statements in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards and 
expressed his independent opinion on the true and fair of the Company’s financial positions and performance of its  
operations as stated in the financial statements. Auditor’s Report is also shown in this Annual Report.

(Mr. Somchai Boonnamsiri)
Chairman of the Board

On behalf of the Board of Directors
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Report of The Board of Director’s Responsibilities for The Financial 
Statements
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(Mr. Somchai Boonnamsiri)
Chairman of the Board

On behalf of the Board of Directors
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AUDITOR’S REPORT

To The Shareholders of BEC World Public Company Limited

Opinion
I have audited the consolidated financial statements of BEC 
World Public Company Limited and its subsidiaries, which 
comprise the consolidated statements of financial position 
as at December 31, 2023, the related consolidated statements 
of income, comprehensive income, changes in shareholders’ 
equity and cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to 
the consolidated financial statements, including a summary 
of significant accounting policies, and have also audited the 
separate financial statements of BEC World Public Company 
Limited for the same period.

In my opinions, the financial statements referred to above 
present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position 
of BEC World Public Company Limited and its subsidiaries 
and of BEC World Public Company Limited as at December 
31, 2023, their financial performance and cash flows for the 
year then ended in accordance with Thai Financial  
Reporting Standards.

Basis for Opinion
I conducted my audit in accordance with Thai Standards on 
Auditing. My responsibilities under those standards are 
further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the 
Audit of the Financial Statements section of my report. I am 
independent of the Group in accordance with the Code of 
Ethics for Professional Accountants including Independence 
Standards issued by the Federation of Accounting Professions 
(Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants) that are  
relevant to my audit of the financial statements, and I have 
fulfilled my other ethical responsibilities in accordance with 
the Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants. I believe 
that the audit evidence I have obtained is sufficient and 
appropriate to provide a basis for my opinion.

Key Audit Matters
Key audit matters are those matters that, in my professional 
judgment, were of most significance in my audit of the  
financial statements of the current period. These matters 
were addressed in the context of my audit of the financial 
statements as a whole, and in forming my opinion thereon, 
and I do not provide a separate opinion on these matters. 

Deferred tax assets
As at December 31, 2023, the consolidated financial  
statements of the Company have deferred tax assets amount 
of Baht 679.27 million.Which is considered to be a significant 
asset in the Group’s consolidated statements of financial 
position. The Group Companies have disclosed their  
accounting policies and the details relating to deferred tax 
assets in Notes 3.12 and 27 to the financial statements, 
respectively. Deferred tax assets are recognized when it is 
highly probable that the Group Companies taxable profit  
will be sufficient to allow utilisation of the deferred tax assets 
in the future. Determining whether there will be sufficient 
future taxable profit available to utilise taxable losses  
requires significant management judgment with respect to 
the preparation of business plans and projections of future  
taxable profits based on approved business plans. Therefore, 
there is a risk with respect to the amount of deferred tax 
assets. 

I assessed the estimates of future taxable profits by  
checking the required information and key economic  
assumptions used in the projections against information from 
both internal and external sources, with special consideration 
given to the information and assumptions that directly affect 
revenue growth and gross profit margin. In addition,  
I compared the past projections with actual taxable profits 
to assess the exercise of management judgment in  
estimating the taxable profits. I also tested the estimate on 
of future taxable profits based on the above information and 
assumptions.

The results of a test are satisfactory, and in my opinions,  
the deferred tax assets are appropriate as stated.
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Other Information 
Management is responsible for the other information.  
The other information comprises the information included 
in the annual report, but does not include the financial 
statements and my auditor’s report thereon. The annual 
report of the Group is expected to be made available to me 
after the date of this auditor’s report. 

My opinion on the financial statements does not cover the 
other information and I do not express any form of assurance 
conclusion thereon.

In connection with my audit of the financial statements,  
my responsibility is to read the other information and,  
in doing so, consider whether the other information is  
materially inconsistent with the financial statements or my 
knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to 
be materially misstated. 

When I read the annual report, if I conclude that there is a 
material misstatement therein, I am required to communicate 
the matter to those charged with governance for correction 
of the misstatement.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged 
with Governance for the Financial Statements
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair 
presentation of the financial statements in accordance with 
Thai Financial Reporting Standards, and for such internal 
control as management determines is necessary to enable 
the preparation of financial statements that are free from 
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is  
responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as 
a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related 
to going concern and using the going concern basis of  
accounting unless management either intends to liquidate 
the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic 
alternative but to do so. 

Those charged with governance are responsible for  
overseeing the Group’s financial reporting process. 

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the  
Financial Statements
My objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about 
whether the financial statements as a whole are free from 
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and 
to issue an auditor’s report that includes my opinion.  
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not 
a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with 
Thai Standards on Auditing will always detect a material 
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from 
fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or 
in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to 
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the 
basis of these financial statements. 

As part of an audit in accordance with Thai Standards on 
Auditing, I exercise professional judgement and maintain 
professional skepticism throughout the audit. I also:
• Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of

the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those 
risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for my opinion. The risk
of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from
fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud
may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

• Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to
the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose 
of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Group’s internal control.

• Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used 
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and
related disclosures made by management.

• Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use
of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on
the audit evidence obtained, whether a material
uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that
may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability to
continue as a going concern. If I conclude that a
material uncertainty exists, I am required to draw
attention in my auditor’s report to the related disclosures 
in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify my opinion. My conclusions are
based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of
my auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions 
may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going
concern.
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assets in Notes 3.12 and 27 to the financial statements, 
respectively. Deferred tax assets are recognized when it is 
highly probable that the Group Companies taxable profit  
will be sufficient to allow utilisation of the deferred tax assets 
in the future. Determining whether there will be sufficient 
future taxable profit available to utilise taxable losses  
requires significant management judgment with respect to 
the preparation of business plans and projections of future  
taxable profits based on approved business plans. Therefore, 
there is a risk with respect to the amount of deferred tax 
assets. 

I assessed the estimates of future taxable profits by  
checking the required information and key economic  
assumptions used in the projections against information from 
both internal and external sources, with special consideration 
given to the information and assumptions that directly affect 
revenue growth and gross profit margin. In addition,  
I compared the past projections with actual taxable profits 
to assess the exercise of management judgment in  
estimating the taxable profits. I also tested the estimate on 
of future taxable profits based on the above information and 
assumptions.

The results of a test are satisfactory, and in my opinions,  
the deferred tax assets are appropriate as stated.
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Other Information 
Management is responsible for the other information.  
The other information comprises the information included 
in the annual report, but does not include the financial 
statements and my auditor’s report thereon. The annual 
report of the Group is expected to be made available to me 
after the date of this auditor’s report. 

My opinion on the financial statements does not cover the 
other information and I do not express any form of assurance 
conclusion thereon.

In connection with my audit of the financial statements,  
my responsibility is to read the other information and,  
in doing so, consider whether the other information is  
materially inconsistent with the financial statements or my 
knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to 
be materially misstated. 

When I read the annual report, if I conclude that there is a 
material misstatement therein, I am required to communicate 
the matter to those charged with governance for correction 
of the misstatement.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged 
with Governance for the Financial Statements
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair 
presentation of the financial statements in accordance with 
Thai Financial Reporting Standards, and for such internal 
control as management determines is necessary to enable 
the preparation of financial statements that are free from 
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is  
responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as 
a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related 
to going concern and using the going concern basis of  
accounting unless management either intends to liquidate 
the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic 
alternative but to do so. 

Those charged with governance are responsible for  
overseeing the Group’s financial reporting process. 

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the  
Financial Statements
My objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about 
whether the financial statements as a whole are free from 
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and 
to issue an auditor’s report that includes my opinion.  
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not 
a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with 
Thai Standards on Auditing will always detect a material 
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from 
fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or 
in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to 
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the 
basis of these financial statements. 

As part of an audit in accordance with Thai Standards on 
Auditing, I exercise professional judgement and maintain 
professional skepticism throughout the audit. I also:
• Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of

the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those 
risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for my opinion. The risk
of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from
fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud
may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

• Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to
the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose 
of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Group’s internal control.

• Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used 
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and
related disclosures made by management.

• Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use
of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on
the audit evidence obtained, whether a material
uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that
may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability to
continue as a going concern. If I conclude that a
material uncertainty exists, I am required to draw
attention in my auditor’s report to the related disclosures 
in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify my opinion. My conclusions are
based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of
my auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions 
may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going
concern.
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• Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content
of the financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that
achieves fair presentation.

• Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding
the financial information of the entities or business
activities within the Group to express an opinion on the
consolidated financial statements. I am responsible for
the direction, supervision and performance of the group
audit. I remain solely responsible for my audit opinion.

I communicate with those charged with governance  
regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and 
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including 
any significant deficiencies in internal control that I  
identify during my audit.

I also provide those charged with governance with a  
statement that I have complied with relevant ethical  
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate 
with them all relationships and other matters that may 
reasonably be thought to bear on my independence, and 
where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with 
governance, I determine those matters that were of most 
significance in the audit of the financial statements of the 
current period and are therefore the key audit matters.  
I describe these matters in my auditor’s report unless law 
or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter 
or when, in extremely rare circumstances, I determine that 
a matter should not be communicated in my report because 
the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be 
expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such 
communication.

(Mr. Chaiyakorn Aunpitipongsa)
Certified Public Accountant Registration No. 3196

Dr. Virach & Associates Office Co., Ltd.
Bangkok : February 21, 2024
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STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION
BEC WORLD PUBLIC COMPANY LIMITED AND SUBSIDIARIES
As at December 31, 2023

BAHT

 CONSOLIDATED SEPARATE  FINANCIAL  STATEMENTS

Notes 2023  2022 2023 2022

สิินทรััพย์์		

สิินทรััพย์์หมุุนเวีีย์น

เงิินสิดและรัาย์การัเทีย์บเท่าเงิินสิด	 3.2	and	4	 2,810,727,408	 3,952,243,384	 2,098,400,360	 3,248,715,717

สิินทรััพย์์ทางิการัเงิินหมุุนเวีีย์นอื่่�น	

-	 เงิินฝากปรัะจำธนาคารั	 1,008,000,000	 -	 	1,008,000,000	 -

ลูกหนี�การัค้าและลูกหนี�หมุุนเวีีย์นอื่่�น	 3.3	and	5	 694,310,224	 677,712,822	 3,282,195,395	 2,931,812,386	

เงิินให้กู้ย์่มุรัะย์ะสิั�นแก่กิจการัที�เกี�ย์วีข้้อื่งิกัน	 6	 -	 -	 2,478,141,848	 	2,808,119,546

สิินทรััพย์์ภาษีีเงิินได้ข้อื่งิงิวีดปัจจุบัน	 123,467,792	 73,928,814	 10,708,982	 19,408,898	

สิินทรััพย์์ทางิการัเงิินหมุุนเวีีย์นอื่่�น-เงิินลงิทุนใน

ตรัาสิารัทุนที�ไมุ่อื่ย์ู่ในควีามุต้อื่งิการัข้อื่งิตลาด	 3.3	and	7	 5,414,350	 -	 5,414,350	 -

สิินทรััพย์์หมุุนเวีีย์นอื่่�น	 8	 18,405,130	 20,022,702	 5,941,940	 8,556,348	

รัวีมุสิินทรััพย์์หมุุนเวีีย์น	 		4,660,324,904	 4,723,907,722	 	8,888,802,875	 9,016,612,895

สิินทรััพย์์ไมุ่หมุุนเวีีย์น

สิินทรััพย์์ทางิการัเงิินไมุ่หมุุนเวีีย์นอื่่�น-	

	 	 เงิินลงิทุนในตรัาสิารัทุนที�ไมุ่อื่ย์ู่	 3.3	and	9.2	 356,000	 322,000	 -	 -

เงิินลงิทุนในบรัิษีัทย์่อื่ย์	 3.4	and	10	 -	 -	 770,902,185	 775,992,264	

เงิินลงิทุนในการัรั่วีมุค้า	 3.5	and	11	 111,906,223	 23,800,378	 41,510,000	 19,700,000	

อื่สิังิหารัิมุทรััพย์์เพ่�อื่การัลงิทุน	 3.6	and	12	 6,750,000	 6,750,000	 700,000	 700,000	

อื่าคารัและอืุ่ปกรัณ์์	 3.7	and	13	 234,269,116	 239,272,646	 61,960,939	 64,945,418

สิินทรััพย์์สิิทธิการัใช้้	 3.8	and	14	 292,596,311	 346,150,414	 116,536,188	 136,363,176	

สิินทรััพย์์ไมุ่มุีตัวีตน	 3.9	and	15	 139,726,669	 127,193,572	 67,058,315	 63,792,377

สิิทธิการัใช้้คล่�นควีามุถี่ี�รัอื่ตัดจำหน่าย์	 3.10	and	16	 731,234,133	 868,882,641	 -	 -

ค่าเช้่าภาพย์นตรั์	ค่าผลิตภัณ์ฑ์์ภาพย์นตรั์		

ค่าละครั	และลิข้สิิทธิ�รัอื่ตัดจำหน่าย์	 	3.11	and	17	 2,428,035,447	 2,172,397,848	 86,717,850	 145,527,467	

เงิินมุัดจำค่าลิข้สิิทธิ�ภาพย์นตรั์	 44,341,167	 59,886,230	 26,861,888	 41,406,950

สิินทรััพย์์ภาษีีเงิินได้รัอื่การัตัดบัญช้ี	 3.12	and	27	 679,268,247	 814,475,640	 25,622,382	 41,540,130	

สิินทรััพย์์ไมุ่หมุุนเวีีย์นอื่่�น	 18	 112,350,106	 233,823,381	 35,722,351	 91,640,368

รัวีมุสิินทรััพย์์ไมุ่หมุุนเวีีย์น	 	4,780,833,419	 4,892,954,750	 1,233,592,098	 1,381,608,150

รัวีมุสิินทรััพย์์		 	9,441,158,323	 9,616,862,472	 10,122,394,973	 10,398,221,045	

ASSETS

Current Assets

Cash and cash equivalents 

Other current financial assets

 - fixed deposit at bank

Trade and other current receivables

Short-term loans to related parties

Current tax assets

Other current financial assets-investments in 

  non-marketable securities

Other current assets

Total Current Assets

Non-current Assets

Other non-current financial assets-

  investments in non-marketable securities

Investments in subsidiaries

Investments in joint venture

Investments property

Plant and equipment

Right-of-use assets

Intangible assets

Deferred right to use spectrum

Deferred pictures rental, picture products, 

plays and copyright charges

Deposit on pictures copyright

Deferred tax assets

Other non-current assets 

Total Non-current Assets

TOTAL ASSETS 

Notes to the financial statements form an integral part of these statements.
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• Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content
of the financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that
achieves fair presentation.

• Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding
the financial information of the entities or business
activities within the Group to express an opinion on the
consolidated financial statements. I am responsible for
the direction, supervision and performance of the group
audit. I remain solely responsible for my audit opinion.

I communicate with those charged with governance  
regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and 
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including 
any significant deficiencies in internal control that I  
identify during my audit.

I also provide those charged with governance with a  
statement that I have complied with relevant ethical  
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate 
with them all relationships and other matters that may 
reasonably be thought to bear on my independence, and 
where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with 
governance, I determine those matters that were of most 
significance in the audit of the financial statements of the 
current period and are therefore the key audit matters.  
I describe these matters in my auditor’s report unless law 
or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter 
or when, in extremely rare circumstances, I determine that 
a matter should not be communicated in my report because 
the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be 
expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such 
communication.

(Mr. Chaiyakorn Aunpitipongsa)
Certified Public Accountant Registration No. 3196

Dr. Virach & Associates Office Co., Ltd.
Bangkok : February 21, 2024
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STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION
BEC WORLD PUBLIC COMPANY LIMITED AND SUBSIDIARIES
As at December 31, 2023

BAHT

 CONSOLIDATED SEPARATE  FINANCIAL  STATEMENTS

Notes 2023  2022 2023 2022

สิินทรััพย์์		

สิินทรััพย์์หมุุนเวีีย์น

เงิินสิดและรัาย์การัเทีย์บเท่าเงิินสิด	 3.2	and	4	 2,810,727,408	 3,952,243,384	 2,098,400,360	 3,248,715,717

สิินทรััพย์์ทางิการัเงิินหมุุนเวีีย์นอื่่�น	

-	 เงิินฝากปรัะจำธนาคารั	 1,008,000,000	 -	 	1,008,000,000	 -

ลูกหนี�การัค้าและลูกหนี�หมุุนเวีีย์นอื่่�น	 3.3	and	5	 694,310,224	 677,712,822	 3,282,195,395	 2,931,812,386	

เงิินให้กู้ย์่มุรัะย์ะสิั�นแก่กิจการัที�เกี�ย์วีข้้อื่งิกัน	 6	 -	 -	 2,478,141,848	 	2,808,119,546

สิินทรััพย์์ภาษีีเงิินได้ข้อื่งิงิวีดปัจจุบัน	 123,467,792	 73,928,814	 10,708,982	 19,408,898	

สิินทรััพย์์ทางิการัเงิินหมุุนเวีีย์นอื่่�น-เงิินลงิทุนใน

ตรัาสิารัทุนที�ไมุ่อื่ย์ู่ในควีามุต้อื่งิการัข้อื่งิตลาด	 3.3	and	7	 5,414,350	 -	 5,414,350	 -

สิินทรััพย์์หมุุนเวีีย์นอื่่�น	 8	 18,405,130	 20,022,702	 5,941,940	 8,556,348	

รัวีมุสิินทรััพย์์หมุุนเวีีย์น	 		4,660,324,904	 4,723,907,722	 	8,888,802,875	 9,016,612,895

สิินทรััพย์์ไมุ่หมุุนเวีีย์น

สิินทรััพย์์ทางิการัเงิินไมุ่หมุุนเวีีย์นอื่่�น-	

	 	 เงิินลงิทุนในตรัาสิารัทุนที�ไมุ่อื่ย์ู่	 3.3	and	9.2	 356,000	 322,000	 -	 -

เงิินลงิทุนในบรัิษีัทย์่อื่ย์	 3.4	and	10	 -	 -	 770,902,185	 775,992,264	

เงิินลงิทุนในการัรั่วีมุค้า	 3.5	and	11	 111,906,223	 23,800,378	 41,510,000	 19,700,000	

อื่สิังิหารัิมุทรััพย์์เพ่�อื่การัลงิทุน	 3.6	and	12	 6,750,000	 6,750,000	 700,000	 700,000	

อื่าคารัและอืุ่ปกรัณ์์	 3.7	and	13	 234,269,116	 239,272,646	 61,960,939	 64,945,418

สิินทรััพย์์สิิทธิการัใช้้	 3.8	and	14	 292,596,311	 346,150,414	 116,536,188	 136,363,176	

สิินทรััพย์์ไมุ่มุีตัวีตน	 3.9	and	15	 139,726,669	 127,193,572	 67,058,315	 63,792,377

สิิทธิการัใช้้คล่�นควีามุถี่ี�รัอื่ตัดจำหน่าย์	 3.10	and	16	 731,234,133	 868,882,641	 -	 -

ค่าเช้่าภาพย์นตรั์	ค่าผลิตภัณ์ฑ์์ภาพย์นตรั์		

ค่าละครั	และลิข้สิิทธิ�รัอื่ตัดจำหน่าย์	 	3.11	and	17	 2,428,035,447	 2,172,397,848	 86,717,850	 145,527,467	

เงิินมุัดจำค่าลิข้สิิทธิ�ภาพย์นตรั์	 44,341,167	 59,886,230	 26,861,888	 41,406,950

สิินทรััพย์์ภาษีีเงิินได้รัอื่การัตัดบัญช้ี	 3.12	and	27	 679,268,247	 814,475,640	 25,622,382	 41,540,130	

สิินทรััพย์์ไมุ่หมุุนเวีีย์นอื่่�น	 18	 112,350,106	 233,823,381	 35,722,351	 91,640,368

รัวีมุสิินทรััพย์์ไมุ่หมุุนเวีีย์น	 	4,780,833,419	 4,892,954,750	 1,233,592,098	 1,381,608,150

รัวีมุสิินทรััพย์์		 	9,441,158,323	 9,616,862,472	 10,122,394,973	 10,398,221,045	

ASSETS

Current Assets

Cash and cash equivalents 

Other current financial assets

 - fixed deposit at bank

Trade and other current receivables

Short-term loans to related parties

Current tax assets

Other current financial assets-investments in 

  non-marketable securities

Other current assets

Total Current Assets

Non-current Assets

Other non-current financial assets-

  investments in non-marketable securities

Investments in subsidiaries

Investments in joint venture

Investments property

Plant and equipment

Right-of-use assets

Intangible assets

Deferred right to use spectrum

Deferred pictures rental, picture products, 

plays and copyright charges

Deposit on pictures copyright

Deferred tax assets

Other non-current assets 

Total Non-current Assets

TOTAL ASSETS 

Notes to the financial statements form an integral part of these statements.
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STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION
BEC WORLD PUBLIC COMPANY LIMITED AND SUBSIDIARIES
As at December 31, 2023

BAHT

 CONSOLIDATED SEPARATE  FINANCIAL  STATEMENTS

Notes 2023  2022 2023 2022

หนี�สิินและสิ่วีนข้อื่งิผู้ถี่่อื่หุ้น	

หนี�สิินหมุุนเวีีย์น 

เจ้าหนี�การัค้าและเจ้าหนี�หมุุนเวีีย์นอื่่�น	 19	 457,962,234	 366,450,933	 26,434,738	 25,749,761	

ค่าใช้้จ่าย์ค้างิจ่าย์	 218,757,824	 314,741,126	 50,031,691	 99,273,897	

	 ที�ถี่ึงิกำหนดช้ำรัะภาย์ในหนึ�งิปี	 3.8	and	20	 64,926,727	 59,671,131	 25,634,328	 23,386,731	

ภาษีีเงิินได้นิติบุคคลค้างิจ่าย์	 -	 18,292,540	 -	 -			

หนี�สิินหมุุนเวีีย์นอื่่�น	 20,052,073	 25,016,613	 200,388,543	 177,666,027	

รัวีมุหนี�สิินหมุุนเวีีย์น	 761,698,858	 784,172,343	 302,489,300	 326,076,416	

หนี�สิินไมุ่หมุุนเวีีย์น

หนี�สิินตามุสิัญญาเช้่า	 3.8	and	20	 234,823,876	 291,304,502	 92,082,562	 113,705,050	

หุ้นกู้	 	 	 3.3	and	21	 1,994,922,639	 1,992,189,222	 1,994,922,639	 1,992,189,222	

สิำรัอื่งิผลปรัะโย์ช้น์รัะย์ะย์าวีข้อื่งิพนักงิาน	 3.17	and	22	 303,150,163	 307,994,982	 	156,311,927	 141,844,130	

รัวีมุหนี�สิินไมุ่หมุุนเวีีย์น	 2,532,896,678	 2,591,488,706	 2,243,317,128	 2,247,738,402	

รัวีมุหนี�สิิน	 	 3,294,595,536	 3,375,661,049	 2,545,806,428	 	2,573,814,818	

สิ่วีนข้อื่งิผู้ถี่่อื่หุ้น

ทุนเรั่อื่นหุ้น

ทุนจดทะเบีย์น

หุ้นสิามุัญ	2,000,000,000	หุ้น	มุูลค่าหุ้นละ	 	 2,000,000,000	 	2,000,000,000	 2,000,000,000	 2,000,000,000	

ทุนที�อื่อื่กและช้ำรัะแล้วี

หุ้นสิามุัญ	2,000,000,000	หุ้น	มุูลค่าหุ้นละ	 2,000,000,000	 2,000,000,000	 2,000,000,000	 2,000,000,000	

สิ่วีนเกินมุูลค่าหุ้นสิามุัญ		 	1,166,724,373	 1,166,724,373	 1,166,724,373	 1,166,724,373	

สิ่วีนต�ำจากการัเปลี�ย์นแปลงิสิัดสิ่วีนเงิินลงิทุน

ในบรัิษีัทย์่อื่ย์	 10	 (29,091,455)	 (29,091,455)	 -	 -			

กำไรัสิะสิมุ

จัดสิรัรัแล้วี

ทุนสิำรัอื่งิตามุกฎหมุาย์	 25	 200,000,000	 200,000,000	 200,000,000	 200,000,000	

ย์ังิไมุ่ได้จัดสิรัรั	 2,808,888,797	 2,903,529,660	 4,209,864,172	 	4,457,681,854	

รัวีมุสิ่วีนข้อื่งิบรัิษีัทใหญ่	 6,146,521,715	 6,241,162,578	 7,576,588,545	 7,824,406,227	

สิ่วีนได้เสิีย์ที�ไมุ่มุีอื่ำนาจควีบคุมุ	 41,072	 38,845	 -	 -			

รัวีมุสิ่วีนข้อื่งิผู้ถี่่อื่หุ้น	 6,146,562,787	 6,241,201,423	 7,576,588,545	 7,824,406,227	

รัวีมุหนี�สิินและสิ่วีนข้อื่งิผู้ถี่่อื่หุ้น	 	9,441,158,323	 9,616,862,472	 10,122,394,973		 10,398,221,045	

Notes to the financial statements form an integral part of these statements.

LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY

Current Liabilities

Trade and other current payables

Accrued expenses

Current portion of lease liabilities

Corporate income tax payable

Other current liabilities

Total Current Liabilities

Non-current Liabilities

Lease liabilities

 Debentures

Provision for long-term employee benefits

Total Non-current Liabilities

Total Liabilities

Shareholders’ Equity

Share capital

Authorized share capital

2,000,000,000 common stocks of Baht 1 par value

Issued and paid-up share capital

  2,000,000,000 common stocks at Baht 1 each

Premium on common stocks 

Discount from change in proportion of 

investments in subsidiary

Retained earnings 

  Appropriated

    Legal reserve 

  Unappropriated

Total Shareholders’ Equity of Parent Company

Non-controlling interests

Total Shareholders’ Equity

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY  
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STATEMENTS OF INCOME
BEC WORLD PUBLIC COMPANY LIMITED AND SUBSIDIARIES
For The Year Ended December 31, 2023

BAHT

 CONSOLIDATED SEPARATE  FINANCIAL  STATEMENTS

Notes 2023  2022 2023 2022

รัาย์ได้

รัาย์ได้จากการัข้าย์เวีลาโฆษีณ์า	 3,963,160,237	 4,448,682,857	 -	 -			

รัาย์ได้จากการัให้ใช้้ลิข้สิิทธิ�และบรัิการัอื่่�น	 689,773,704	 666,022,125	 780,034,514	 982,094,853	

รัาย์ได้จากการัข้าย์สิินค้า	 -	 -	 -	 48,583	

รัาย์ได้เงิินปันผล	 10	 -	 -	 20,899,707	 -			

รัาย์ได้อื่่�น		 10,975,887	 20,975,364	 4,584,234	 14,466,729	

รัวีมุรัาย์ได้	 	 4,663,909,828	 5,135,680,346	 805,518,455	 996,610,165	

ค่าใช้้จ่าย์

ต้นทุนข้าย์และต้นทุนการัให้บรัิการั	 3,440,379,795	 3,560,838,343	 220,529,534	 247,706,495	

ต้นทุนในการัจัดจำหน่าย์	 239,853,544	 191,368,998	 28,057,229	 19,950,993	

ค่าใช้้จ่าย์ในการับรัิหารั	 618,854,754	 581,209,578	 502,099,791	 467,775,190	

ค่าตอื่บแทนกรัรัมุการั	 23	 22,655,000	 22,845,000	 22,655,000	 22,845,000	

(กลับรัาย์การั)ข้าดทุนจากการัด้อื่ย์ค่าข้อื่งิเงิินลงิทุน

ในบรัิษีัทย์่อื่ย์	 -	 -	 90,149	 (85,669)

กำไรัจากการัวีัดมุูลค่าสิินทรััพย์์ทางิการัเงิินหมุุนเวีีย์

	 	 	 ในควีามุต้อื่งิการัข้อื่งิตลาด	 -	 -	 (414,420)	 -			

(กำไรั)ข้าดทุนจากการัวีัดมุูลค่าสิินทรััพย์์ทางิการัเงิิน

	 ในควีามุต้อื่งิการัข้อื่งิตลาด	 (34,000)	 78,000	 -	 -			

รัวีมุค่าใช้้จ่าย์		 26	 4,321,709,093	 4,356,339,919	 773,017,283	 		758,192,009	

กำไรัจากกิจกรัรัมุดำเนินงิาน	 342,200,735	 779,340,427	 32,501,172	 238,418,156	

รัาย์ได้ทางิการัเงิิน	 	35,715,526	 16,232,364	 174,049,345	 148,826,375	

ต้นทุนทางิการัเงิิน	 24	 (110,166,825)	 (113,547,822)	 (100,031,030)	 (104,749,359)

กลับรัาย์การั(ข้าดทุนจากการัด้อื่ย์ค่า)ซึ่ึ�งิเป็นไปตามุ

มุาตรัฐานการัรัาย์งิานทางิการัเงิิน	ฉบับที�	9	 11,996,490	 40,922,489	 (429,079)	 245,599	

สิ่วีนแบ่งิกำไรัจากเงิินลงิทุนในการัรั่วีมุค้า	 66,295,845	 4,100,378	 -	 -			

กำไรัก่อื่นภาษีีเงิินได้	 346,041,771	 727,047,836	 106,090,408	 	282,740,771	

ค่าใช้้จ่าย์ภาษีีเงิินได้	 3.13	and	27	 136,034,958								120,001,103	 23,248,852	 42,624,741	

กำไรัสิำหรัับปี	 210,006,813	 607,046,733	 82,841,556	 240,116,030	

การัแบ่งิปันกำไรั

สิ่วีนที�เป็นข้อื่งิบรัิษีัทใหญ่	 210,005,187	 	607,029,719	 	82,841,556	 240,116,030	

สิ่วีนที�เป็นข้อื่งิสิ่วีนได้เสิีย์ที�ไมุ่มุีอื่ำนาจควีบคุมุ	 1,626	 17,014	 	-	 -			

210,006,813	 607,046,733	 82,841,556	 240,116,030	

กำไรัต่อื่หุ้นสิ่วีนที�เป็นข้อื่งิบรัิษีัทใหญ่

กำไรัต่อื่หุ้นข้ั�นพ่�นฐาน	 3.14	 0.11	 0.30	 0.04	 0.12	

จำนวีนหุ้นสิามุัญที�อื่อื่กและช้ำรัะแล้วี	2,000,0

REVENUES 

Advertising income

Income from copyright and other services

Sales of goods

Dividend income 

Other incomes

Total Revenues

EXPENSES 

Cost of sales and services

Distribution cost

Administrative expenses

Directors’ remuneration

(Reversal) loss on impairment of investments in 

  subsidiary

Gain on remeasuring other current financial assets-

  investments in non-marketable securities 

(Gain) loss on remeasuring other non-current financial

assets-investments in non-marketable securities

Total Expenses

Profit from operating activities

Finance income

Finance cost

Reversal (impairment loss) determined 

in accordance with TFRS 9

Share of profit from joint venture

Profit before income tax

Income tax expenses 

Profit for the years

Profit attributable to

Equity holders of the parent

Non-controlling interests

Earnings per share to equity holders of the parent 

Basic Earnings Per Share 

Issued and paid-up 2,000,000,000 common stocks 

Notes to the financial statements form an integral part of these statements.
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STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION
BEC WORLD PUBLIC COMPANY LIMITED AND SUBSIDIARIES
As at December 31, 2023

BAHT

 CONSOLIDATED SEPARATE  FINANCIAL  STATEMENTS

Notes 2023  2022 2023 2022

หนี�สิินและสิ่วีนข้อื่งิผู้ถี่่อื่หุ้น	

หนี�สิินหมุุนเวีีย์น 

เจ้าหนี�การัค้าและเจ้าหนี�หมุุนเวีีย์นอื่่�น	 19	 457,962,234	 366,450,933	 26,434,738	 25,749,761	

ค่าใช้้จ่าย์ค้างิจ่าย์	 218,757,824	 314,741,126	 50,031,691	 99,273,897	

	 ที�ถี่ึงิกำหนดช้ำรัะภาย์ในหนึ�งิปี	 3.8	and	20	 64,926,727	 59,671,131	 25,634,328	 23,386,731	

ภาษีีเงิินได้นิติบุคคลค้างิจ่าย์	 -	 18,292,540	 -	 -			

หนี�สิินหมุุนเวีีย์นอื่่�น	 20,052,073	 25,016,613	 200,388,543	 177,666,027	

รัวีมุหนี�สิินหมุุนเวีีย์น	 761,698,858	 784,172,343	 302,489,300	 326,076,416	

หนี�สิินไมุ่หมุุนเวีีย์น

หนี�สิินตามุสิัญญาเช้่า	 3.8	and	20	 234,823,876	 291,304,502	 92,082,562	 113,705,050	

หุ้นกู้	 	 	 3.3	and	21	 1,994,922,639	 1,992,189,222	 1,994,922,639	 1,992,189,222	

สิำรัอื่งิผลปรัะโย์ช้น์รัะย์ะย์าวีข้อื่งิพนักงิาน	 3.17	and	22	 303,150,163	 307,994,982	 	156,311,927	 141,844,130	

รัวีมุหนี�สิินไมุ่หมุุนเวีีย์น	 2,532,896,678	 2,591,488,706	 2,243,317,128	 2,247,738,402	

รัวีมุหนี�สิิน	 	 3,294,595,536	 3,375,661,049	 2,545,806,428	 	2,573,814,818	

สิ่วีนข้อื่งิผู้ถี่่อื่หุ้น

ทุนเรั่อื่นหุ้น

ทุนจดทะเบีย์น

หุ้นสิามุัญ	2,000,000,000	หุ้น	มุูลค่าหุ้นละ	 	 2,000,000,000	 	2,000,000,000	 2,000,000,000	 2,000,000,000	

ทุนที�อื่อื่กและช้ำรัะแล้วี

หุ้นสิามุัญ	2,000,000,000	หุ้น	มุูลค่าหุ้นละ	 2,000,000,000	 2,000,000,000	 2,000,000,000	 2,000,000,000	

สิ่วีนเกินมุูลค่าหุ้นสิามุัญ		 	1,166,724,373	 1,166,724,373	 1,166,724,373	 1,166,724,373	

สิ่วีนต�ำจากการัเปลี�ย์นแปลงิสิัดสิ่วีนเงิินลงิทุน

ในบรัิษีัทย์่อื่ย์	 10	 (29,091,455)	 (29,091,455)	 -	 -			

กำไรัสิะสิมุ

จัดสิรัรัแล้วี

ทุนสิำรัอื่งิตามุกฎหมุาย์	 25	 200,000,000	 200,000,000	 200,000,000	 200,000,000	

ย์ังิไมุ่ได้จัดสิรัรั	 2,808,888,797	 2,903,529,660	 4,209,864,172	 	4,457,681,854	

รัวีมุสิ่วีนข้อื่งิบรัิษีัทใหญ่	 6,146,521,715	 6,241,162,578	 7,576,588,545	 7,824,406,227	

สิ่วีนได้เสิีย์ที�ไมุ่มุีอื่ำนาจควีบคุมุ	 41,072	 38,845	 -	 -			

รัวีมุสิ่วีนข้อื่งิผู้ถี่่อื่หุน้	 6,146,562,787	 6,241,201,423	 7,576,588,545	 7,824,406,227	

รัวีมุหนี�สิินและสิ่วีนข้อื่งิผู้ถี่่อื่หุ้น	 	9,441,158,323	 9,616,862,472	 10,122,394,973		 10,398,221,045	

Notes to the financial statements form an integral part of these statements.

LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY

Current Liabilities

Trade and other current payables

Accrued expenses

Current portion of lease liabilities

Corporate income tax payable

Other current liabilities

Total Current Liabilities

Non-current Liabilities

Lease liabilities

 Debentures

Provision for long-term employee benefits

Total Non-current Liabilities

Total Liabilities

Shareholders’ Equity

Share capital

Authorized share capital

2,000,000,000 common stocks of Baht 1 par value

Issued and paid-up share capital

  2,000,000,000 common stocks at Baht 1 each

Premium on common stocks 

Discount from change in proportion of 

investments in subsidiary

Retained earnings 

  Appropriated

    Legal reserve 

  Unappropriated

Total Shareholders’ Equity of Parent Company

Non-controlling interests

Total Shareholders’ Equity

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY  
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STATEMENTS OF INCOME
BEC WORLD PUBLIC COMPANY LIMITED AND SUBSIDIARIES
For The Year Ended December 31, 2023

BAHT

 CONSOLIDATED SEPARATE  FINANCIAL  STATEMENTS

Notes 2023  2022 2023 2022

รัาย์ได้

รัาย์ได้จากการัข้าย์เวีลาโฆษีณ์า	 3,963,160,237	 4,448,682,857	 -	 -			

รัาย์ได้จากการัให้ใช้้ลิข้สิิทธิ�และบรัิการัอื่่�น	 689,773,704	 666,022,125	 780,034,514	 982,094,853	

รัาย์ได้จากการัข้าย์สิินค้า	 -	 -	 -	 48,583	

รัาย์ได้เงิินปันผล	 10	 -	 -	 20,899,707	 -			

รัาย์ได้อื่่�น		 10,975,887	 20,975,364	 4,584,234	 14,466,729	

รัวีมุรัาย์ได้	 	 4,663,909,828	 5,135,680,346	 805,518,455	 996,610,165	

ค่าใช้้จ่าย์

ต้นทุนข้าย์และต้นทุนการัให้บรัิการั	 3,440,379,795	 3,560,838,343	 220,529,534	 247,706,495	

ต้นทุนในการัจัดจำหน่าย์	 239,853,544	 191,368,998	 28,057,229	 19,950,993	

ค่าใช้้จ่าย์ในการับรัิหารั	 618,854,754	 581,209,578	 502,099,791	 467,775,190	

ค่าตอื่บแทนกรัรัมุการั	 23	 22,655,000	 22,845,000	 22,655,000	 22,845,000	

(กลับรัาย์การั)ข้าดทุนจากการัด้อื่ย์ค่าข้อื่งิเงิินลงิทุน

ในบรัิษีัทย์่อื่ย์	 -	 -	 90,149	 (85,669)

กำไรัจากการัวีัดมุูลค่าสิินทรััพย์์ทางิการัเงิินหมุุนเวีีย์

	 	 	 ในควีามุต้อื่งิการัข้อื่งิตลาด	 -	 -	 (414,420)	 -			

(กำไรั)ข้าดทุนจากการัวีัดมุูลค่าสิินทรััพย์์ทางิการัเงิิน

	 ในควีามุต้อื่งิการัข้อื่งิตลาด	 (34,000)	 78,000	 -	 -			

รัวีมุค่าใช้้จ่าย์		 26	 4,321,709,093	 4,356,339,919	 773,017,283	 		758,192,009	

กำไรัจากกิจกรัรัมุดำเนินงิาน	 342,200,735	 779,340,427	 32,501,172	 238,418,156	

รัาย์ได้ทางิการัเงิิน	 	35,715,526	 16,232,364	 174,049,345	 148,826,375	

ต้นทุนทางิการัเงิิน	 24	 (110,166,825)	 (113,547,822)	 (100,031,030)	 (104,749,359)

กลับรัาย์การั(ข้าดทุนจากการัด้อื่ย์ค่า)ซึ่ึ�งิเป็นไปตามุ

มุาตรัฐานการัรัาย์งิานทางิการัเงิิน	ฉบับที�	9	 11,996,490	 40,922,489	 (429,079)	 245,599	

สิ่วีนแบ่งิกำไรัจากเงิินลงิทุนในการัรั่วีมุค้า	 66,295,845	 4,100,378	 -	 -			

กำไรัก่อื่นภาษีีเงิินได้	 346,041,771	 727,047,836	 106,090,408	 	282,740,771	

ค่าใช้้จ่าย์ภาษีีเงิินได้	 3.13	and	27	 136,034,958								120,001,103	 23,248,852	 42,624,741	

กำไรัสิำหรัับปี	 210,006,813	 607,046,733	 82,841,556	 240,116,030	

การัแบ่งิปันกำไรั

สิ่วีนที�เป็นข้อื่งิบรัิษีัทใหญ่	 210,005,187	 	607,029,719	 	82,841,556	 240,116,030	

สิ่วีนที�เป็นข้อื่งิสิ่วีนได้เสิีย์ที�ไมุ่มุีอื่ำนาจควีบคุมุ	 1,626	 17,014	 	-	 -			

210,006,813	 607,046,733	 82,841,556	 240,116,030	

กำไรัต่อื่หุ้นสิ่วีนที�เป็นข้อื่งิบรัิษีัทใหญ่

กำไรัต่อื่หุ้นข้ั�นพ่�นฐาน	 3.14	 0.11	 0.30	 0.04	 0.12	

จำนวีนหุ้นสิามุัญที�อื่อื่กและช้ำรัะแล้วี	2,000,0

REVENUES 

Advertising income

Income from copyright and other services

Sales of goods

Dividend income 

Other incomes

Total Revenues

EXPENSES 

Cost of sales and services

Distribution cost

Administrative expenses

Directors’ remuneration

(Reversal) loss on impairment of investments in 

  subsidiary

Gain on remeasuring other current financial assets-

  investments in non-marketable securities 

(Gain) loss on remeasuring other non-current financial

assets-investments in non-marketable securities

Total Expenses

Profit from operating activities

Finance income

Finance cost

Reversal (impairment loss) determined 

in accordance with TFRS 9

Share of profit from joint venture

Profit before income tax

Income tax expenses 

Profit for the years

Profit attributable to

Equity holders of the parent

Non-controlling interests

Earnings per share to equity holders of the parent 

Basic Earnings Per Share 

Issued and paid-up 2,000,000,000 common stocks 

Notes to the financial statements form an integral part of these statements.
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STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
BEC WORLD PUBLIC COMPANY LIMITED AND SUBSIDIARIES
For The Year Ended December 31, 2023

BAHT

 CONSOLIDATED SEPARATE  FINANCIAL  STATEMENTS

Notes 2023  2022 2023 2022

กำไรัสิำหรัับปี	 210,006,813	 607,046,733	 82,841,556	 240,116,030	

กำไรั(ข้าดทุน)เบ็ดเสิรั็จอื่่�น	:-

รัาย์การัที�จะไมุ่ถีู่กจัดปรัะเภทใหมุ่ไวี้ในกำไรัหรั่

ผลข้าดทุนจากการัวีัดมุูลค่าเงิินลงิทุนในตรัาสิารัทุน

ในควีามุต้อื่งิการัข้อื่งิตลาด	 -	 	(53,606,390)	 -		 (53,606,390)

อื่งิค์ปรัะกอื่บข้อื่งิภาษีีเงิินได้	 -	 10,721,278	 -	 10,721,278	

ผลข้าดทุนจากการัวีัดมุูลค่าเงิินลงิทุนในตรัาสิารัทุน

ในควีามุต้อื่งิการัข้อื่งิตลาด-สิุทธิจากภาษีี	 -	 (42,885,112)	 -	 (42,885,112)

กลับรัาย์การัอื่งิค์ปรัะกอื่บข้อื่งิภาษีีเงิินได้

จากการัจำหน่าย์เงิินลงิทุน	 -		 (15,987,419)	 -		 (15,987,419)

รัวีมุผลข้าดทุนจากการัวีัดมุูลค่าเงิินลงิทุนในตรัาสิารัทุน

ในควีามุต้อื่งิการัข้อื่งิตลาด-สิุทธิจากภาษีี	 -		 (58,872,531)	 -		 	(58,872,531)

	 ผลปรัะโย์ช้น์ข้อื่งิพนักงิาน	 22	 19,193,649	 -	 (13,324,048)	 -			

อื่งิค์ปรัะกอื่บข้อื่งิภาษีีเงิินได้	 	(3,838,729)	 -	 2,664,810	 -			

	 ผลปรัะโย์ช้น์ข้อื่งิพนักงิาน-สิุทธิจากภาษีี	 	 15,354,920	 -	 (10,659,238)	 	-			

กำไรั(ข้าดทุน)เบ็ดเสิรั็จอื่่�นสิำหรัับปี-สิุทธิจากภาษีี	 15,354,920	 (58,872,531)	 (10,659,238)	 (58,872,531)

กำไรัเบ็ดเสิรั็จรัวีมุสิำหรัับปี	 225,361,733	 548,174,202	 72,182,318	 181,243,499	

การัแบ่งิปันกำไรัเบ็ดเสิรั็จรัวีมุ

สิ่วีนที�เป็นข้อื่งิบรัิษีัทใหญ่	 225,359,137	 548,157,188	 72,182,318	 	181,243,499	

สิ่วีนที�เป็นข้อื่งิสิ่วีนได้เสิีย์ที�ไมุ่มุีอื่ำนาจควีบคุมุ	 2,596	 17,014	 -	 -			

225,361,733	 548,174,202	 72,182,318	 181,243,499	

Notes to the financial statements form an integral part of these statements.

Profit for the years

Other comprehensive income (loss):-

Components of other comprehensive income

that will not be reclassified to profit or loss :

Loss on remeasuring investment in 

   marketable securities 

 Components of income tax

 Loss on remeasuring investment in 

 marketable securities-net of tax 

 Reversal components of income tax from 

   investment disposal 

 Total loss on remeasuring investment in

 marketable securities-net of tax

Acturial gain (loss) from employee benefit plan 

 Components of income tax

Acturial gain (loss) from employee benefit plan-net of tax

Other comprehensive income (loss) for the years-net of tax

Total comprehensive income for the years

Total comprehensive income attributable to

 Equity holders of the parent

  Non-controlling interests 
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STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
BEC WORLD PUBLIC COMPANY LIMITED AND SUBSIDIARIES
For The Year Ended December 31, 2023

BAHT

 CONSOLIDATED SEPARATE  FINANCIAL  STATEMENTS

Notes 2023  2022 2023 2022

กำไรัสิำหรัับปี	 210,006,813	 607,046,733	 82,841,556	 240,116,030	

กำไรั(ข้าดทุน)เบ็ดเสิรั็จอื่่�น	:-

รัาย์การัที�จะไมุ่ถีู่กจัดปรัะเภทใหมุ่ไวี้ในกำไรัหรั่

ผลข้าดทุนจากการัวีัดมุูลค่าเงิินลงิทุนในตรัาสิารัทุน

ในควีามุต้อื่งิการัข้อื่งิตลาด	 -	 	(53,606,390)	 -		 (53,606,390)

อื่งิค์ปรัะกอื่บข้อื่งิภาษีีเงิินได้	 -	 10,721,278	 -	 10,721,278	

ผลข้าดทุนจากการัวีัดมุูลค่าเงิินลงิทุนในตรัาสิารัทุน

ในควีามุต้อื่งิการัข้อื่งิตลาด-สิุทธิจากภาษีี	 -	 (42,885,112)	 -	 (42,885,112)

กลับรัาย์การัอื่งิค์ปรัะกอื่บข้อื่งิภาษีีเงิินได้

จากการัจำหน่าย์เงิินลงิทุน	 -		 (15,987,419)	 -		 (15,987,419)

รัวีมุผลข้าดทุนจากการัวีัดมุูลค่าเงิินลงิทุนในตรัาสิารัทุน

ในควีามุต้อื่งิการัข้อื่งิตลาด-สิุทธิจากภาษีี	 -		 (58,872,531)	 -		 	(58,872,531)

	 ผลปรัะโย์ช้น์ข้อื่งิพนักงิาน	 22	 19,193,649	 -	 (13,324,048)	 -			

อื่งิค์ปรัะกอื่บข้อื่งิภาษีีเงิินได้	 	(3,838,729)	 -	 2,664,810	 -			

	 ผลปรัะโย์ช้น์ข้อื่งิพนักงิาน-สิุทธิจากภาษีี	 	 15,354,920	 -	 (10,659,238)	 	-			

กำไรั(ข้าดทุน)เบ็ดเสิรั็จอื่่�นสิำหรัับปี-สิุทธิจากภาษีี	 15,354,920	 (58,872,531)	 (10,659,238)	 (58,872,531)

กำไรัเบ็ดเสิรั็จรัวีมุสิำหรัับปี	 225,361,733	 548,174,202	 72,182,318	 181,243,499	

การัแบ่งิปันกำไรัเบ็ดเสิรั็จรัวีมุ

สิ่วีนที�เป็นข้อื่งิบรัิษีัทใหญ่	 225,359,137	 548,157,188	 72,182,318	 	181,243,499	

สิ่วีนที�เป็นข้อื่งิสิ่วีนได้เสิีย์ที�ไมุ่มุีอื่ำนาจควีบคุมุ	 2,596	 17,014	 -	 -			

225,361,733	 548,174,202	 72,182,318	 181,243,499	

Notes to the financial statements form an integral part of these statements.

Profit for the years

Other comprehensive income (loss):-

Components of other comprehensive income

that will not be reclassified to profit or loss :

Loss on remeasuring investment in 

   marketable securities 

 Components of income tax

 Loss on remeasuring investment in 

 marketable securities-net of tax 

 Reversal components of income tax from 

   investment disposal 

 Total loss on remeasuring investment in

 marketable securities-net of tax

Acturial gain (loss) from employee benefit plan 

 Components of income tax

Acturial gain (loss) from employee benefit plan-net of tax

Other comprehensive income (loss) for the years-net of tax

Total comprehensive income for the years

Total comprehensive income attributable to

 Equity holders of the parent

  Non-controlling interests 
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STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS (1/5)
BEC WORLD PUBLIC COMPANY LIMITED AND SUBSIDIARIES
For The Year Ended December 31, 2023

BAHT

 CONSOLIDATED SEPARATE  FINANCIAL  STATEMENTS

2023  2022 2023 2022

กรัะแสิเงิินสิดจากกิจกรัรัมุดำเนินงิาน	

กำไรัสิำหรัับปี	 210,006,813	 607,046,733	 82,841,556	 240,116,030	

ปรัับกรัะทบกำไรัสิำหรัับปีเป็นเงิินสิดรัับ(จ่าย์)จากการัดำเนินงิาน

ค่าใช้้จ่าย์ภาษีีเงิินได้	 136,034,958	 120,001,103	 23,248,852	 42,624,741	

ปรัับปรัุงิค่าใช้้จ่าย์ภาษีี	 224,832	 1,154,014	 -	 -			

ค่าเสิ่�อื่มุรัาคาอื่าคารัและอืุ่ปกรัณ์์	 	62,519,533	 	55,748,083	 14,417,451	 9,437,530	

ค่าเสิ่�อื่มุรัาคาสิินทรััพย์์สิิทธิการัใช้้	 65,673,018	 67,341,364	 25,605,918	 27,203,641	

ค่าตัดจำหน่าย์สิินทรััพย์์ไมุ่มุีตัวีตน	 41,963,667	 22,857,918	 22,118,373	 	8,201,569	

ค่าตัดจำหน่าย์สิิทธิการัใช้้คล่�นควีามุถี่ี�	 137,648,508	 137,648,509	 -	 -			

ค่าตัดจำหน่าย์ค่าเช้่าภาพย์นตรั์	ค่าละครั	ค่าผลิตภัณ์ฑ์์ภาพย์นตรั ์

และลิข้สิิทธิ�	 1,395,923,904	 1,630,109,474	 82,124,820	 111,714,271	

ค่าผลิตละครัจ่าย์ล่วีงิหน้าตัดจ่าย์	 24,636,500	 -	 24,636,500	 -			

ตัดเงิินมุัดจำค่าลิข้สิิทธิ�ภาพย์นตรั์เป็นค่าใช้้จ่าย์	 2,516,000	 -	 2,516,000	 -			

ภาษีีเงิินได้ถีู่กหัก	ณ์	ที�จ่าย์ตัดจ่าย์	 98,630	 661,369	 69,380	 -			

อืุ่ปกรัณ์์ตัดจ่าย์	 	8,253,420	 -	 -	 -			

หนี�สิูญ		-	ลูกหนี�การัค้า	 7,019,840	 	-	 -	 -			

(กลับรัาย์การั)ผลข้าดทุนด้านเครัดิตที�คาดวี่าจะเกิดข้ึ�น

-	 ลูกหนี�การัค้า	 (11,996,490)	 (40,922,489)	 	-	 (479,891)

-	 เงิินให้กู้ย์่มุรัะย์ะสิั�นแก่กิจการัที�เกี�ย์วีข้้อื่งิกัน	 -	 -	 429,079	 	234,292	

ค่าเผ่�อื่การัด้อื่ย์ค่าค่าใช้้จ่าย์จ่าย์ล่วีงิหน้าลดลงิ	 	 -	 (348,600)	 -	 -			

ค่าเผ่�อื่การัลดมุูลค่าสิินค้าลดลงิ	 	 	-	 	(2,394,573)	 -	 	(2,154,807)

ตัดจ่าย์สิินค้าคงิเหล่อื่เป็นค่าใช้้จ่าย์	 -	 2,394,573	 -	 2,106,224	

(กำไรั)ข้าดทุนจากการัจำหน่าย์/เลิกใช้้อืุ่ปกรัณ์์	 (52,545)	 1,508,292	 (191,645)	 1,528,575	

กำไรัจากการัจำหน่าย์สิินทรััพย์์ไมุ่หมุุนเวีีย์นที�ถี่่อื่ไวี้เพ่�อื่ข้าย์	 -	 (579,428)	 -	 (579,428)

กำไรัจากการัจำหน่าย์สิินทรััพย์์ไมุ่มุีตัวีตน	 -	 -	 (2,031,511)	 -			

กำไรัจากการัข้าย์ละครั	 	(31,647)	 -	 (31,647)	 -			

ข้าดทุนจากการัเลิกใช้้ละครั	 -	 3	 -	 	-			

ข้าดทุนที�ย์ังิไมุ่เกิดข้ึ�นจากอื่ัตรัาแลกเปลี�ย์น	 1,877,230	 6,688,411	 -	 	-			

รัาย์ได้เงิินปันผล	 -	 -	 (20,899,707)	 -			

กำไรัจากการัปรัับมุูลค่าอื่สิังิหารัิมุทรััพย์์เพ่�อื่การัลงิทุน		 -	 (950,000)	 	-	 (100,000)

  (กลับรัาย์การั)ข้าดทุนจากการัด้อื่ย์ค่าข้อื่งิเงิินลงิทุนในบรัิษีัทย์่อื่ย์	 -	 -	 90,149	 (85,669)

กำไรัจากการัวีัดมุูลค่าสิินทรััพย์์ทางิการัเงิินหมุุนเวีีย์นอื่่�น-

   เงิินลงิทุนในตรัาสิารัทุนที�ไมุ่อื่ย์ู่ในควีามุต้อื่งิการัข้อื่งิตลาด - - (414,420) -   

ไมุ่หมุุนเวีีย์นอื่่�น-เงิินลงิทุนในตรัาสิารัทุนที�ไมุ่อื่ย์ู่

ในควีามุต้อื่งิการัข้อื่งิตลาด	 	 (34,000)	 78,000	 -	 -			

รัาย์ได้ทางิการัเงิิน	 (35,715,526)	 (16,232,364)	 (174,049,345)	 (148,826,375)

ต้นทุนทางิการัเงิิน	 110,166,825	 113,547,822	 100,031,030	 104,749,359	

Notes to the financial statements form an integral part of these statements.

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Profit for the years

ADJUSTMENTS TO RECONCILE PROFIT FOR THE YEARS

TO CASH PROVIDED FROM (USED IN) OPERATIONS

   Income tax expenses

 Adjustment of tax expenses

 Depreciation of plant and equipment

 Depreciation of right-of-use assets

 Amortization of intangible assets

 Amortization of right to use spectrum

 Amortization of pictures rental, plays,

     picture products and copyright charges 

 Write-off of prepaid plays production 

 Write-off of deposit on pictures copyright 

 Write-off of withholding tax

   Write-off of equipment

 Bad debt-Trade accounts receivable

 (Reversal) expected credit loss

    - Trade accounts receivable

 - Short-term loans to related parties

   Decrease in allowance for impairment of prepaid expenses

 Decrease in allowance for diminution of inventories

 Write-off of inventories to expenses

	 (Gain)	loss	on	disposal/unused	equipment	

 Gain on disposal non-current assets held for sale

 Gains on disposal intangible assets

 Gain on sale of plays

 Loss on unused plays

 Unrealized loss on exchange rates

   Dividend income

 Gain on revaluation investments property 

   (Reversal) loss on impairment of investments in subsidiary

 Gain on remeasuring other current financial assets

  - investments in non-marketable securities

   (Gain) loss on remeasuring other non-current financial assets

 - investments in non-marketable securities

   Finance income 

   Finance cost
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STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS (1/5)
BEC WORLD PUBLIC COMPANY LIMITED AND SUBSIDIARIES
For The Year Ended December 31, 2023

BAHT

 CONSOLIDATED SEPARATE  FINANCIAL  STATEMENTS

2023  2022 2023 2022

กรัะแสิเงิินสิดจากกิจกรัรัมุดำเนินงิาน	

กำไรัสิำหรัับปี	 210,006,813	 607,046,733	 82,841,556	 240,116,030	

ปรัับกรัะทบกำไรัสิำหรัับปีเป็นเงิินสิดรัับ(จ่าย์)จากการัดำเนินงิาน

ค่าใช้้จ่าย์ภาษีีเงิินได้	 136,034,958	 120,001,103	 23,248,852	 42,624,741	

ปรัับปรัุงิค่าใช้้จ่าย์ภาษีี	 224,832	 1,154,014	 -	 -			

ค่าเสิ่�อื่มุรัาคาอื่าคารัและอืุ่ปกรัณ์์	 	62,519,533	 	55,748,083	 14,417,451	 9,437,530	

ค่าเสิ่�อื่มุรัาคาสิินทรััพย์์สิิทธิการัใช้้	 65,673,018	 67,341,364	 25,605,918	 27,203,641	

ค่าตัดจำหน่าย์สิินทรััพย์์ไมุ่มุีตัวีตน	 41,963,667	 22,857,918	 22,118,373	 	8,201,569	

ค่าตัดจำหน่าย์สิิทธิการัใช้้คล่�นควีามุถี่ี�	 137,648,508	 137,648,509	 -	 -			

ค่าตัดจำหน่าย์ค่าเช้่าภาพย์นตรั์	ค่าละครั	ค่าผลิตภัณ์ฑ์์ภาพย์นตรั ์

และลิข้สิิทธิ�	 1,395,923,904	 1,630,109,474	 82,124,820	 111,714,271	

ค่าผลิตละครัจ่าย์ล่วีงิหน้าตัดจ่าย์	 24,636,500	 -	 24,636,500	 -			

ตัดเงิินมุัดจำค่าลิข้สิิทธิ�ภาพย์นตรั์เป็นค่าใช้้จ่าย์	 2,516,000	 -	 2,516,000	 -			

ภาษีีเงิินได้ถีู่กหัก	ณ์	ที�จ่าย์ตัดจ่าย์	 98,630	 661,369	 69,380	 -			

อืุ่ปกรัณ์์ตัดจ่าย์	 	8,253,420	 -	 -	 -			

หนี�สิูญ		-	ลูกหนี�การัค้า	 7,019,840	 	-	 -	 -			

(กลับรัาย์การั)ผลข้าดทุนด้านเครัดิตที�คาดวี่าจะเกิดข้ึ�น

-	 ลูกหนี�การัค้า	 (11,996,490)	 (40,922,489)	 	-	 (479,891)

-	 เงิินให้กู้ย์่มุรัะย์ะสิั�นแก่กิจการัที�เกี�ย์วีข้้อื่งิกัน	 -	 -	 429,079	 	234,292	

ค่าเผ่�อื่การัด้อื่ย์ค่าค่าใช้้จ่าย์จ่าย์ล่วีงิหน้าลดลงิ	 	 -	 (348,600)	 -	 -			

ค่าเผ่�อื่การัลดมุูลค่าสิินค้าลดลงิ	 	 	-	 	(2,394,573)	 -	 	(2,154,807)

ตัดจ่าย์สิินค้าคงิเหล่อื่เป็นค่าใช้้จ่าย์	 -	 2,394,573	 -	 2,106,224	

(กำไรั)ข้าดทุนจากการัจำหน่าย์/เลิกใช้้อืุ่ปกรัณ์์	 (52,545)	 1,508,292	 (191,645)	 1,528,575	

กำไรัจากการัจำหน่าย์สิินทรััพย์์ไมุ่หมุุนเวีีย์นที�ถี่่อื่ไวี้เพ่�อื่ข้าย์	 -	 (579,428)	 -	 (579,428)

กำไรัจากการัจำหน่าย์สิินทรััพย์์ไมุ่มุีตัวีตน	 -	 -	 (2,031,511)	 -			

กำไรัจากการัข้าย์ละครั	 	(31,647)	 -	 (31,647)	 -			

ข้าดทุนจากการัเลิกใช้้ละครั	 -	 3	 -	 	-			

ข้าดทุนที�ย์ังิไมุ่เกิดข้ึ�นจากอื่ัตรัาแลกเปลี�ย์น	 1,877,230	 6,688,411	 -	 	-			

รัาย์ได้เงิินปันผล	 -	 -	 (20,899,707)	 -			

กำไรัจากการัปรัับมุูลค่าอื่สิังิหารัิมุทรััพย์์เพ่�อื่การัลงิทุน		 -	 (950,000)	 	-	 (100,000)

  (กลับรัาย์การั)ข้าดทุนจากการัด้อื่ย์ค่าข้อื่งิเงิินลงิทุนในบรัิษีัทย์่อื่ย์	 -	 -	 90,149	 (85,669)

กำไรัจากการัวีัดมุูลค่าสิินทรััพย์์ทางิการัเงิินหมุุนเวีีย์นอื่่�น-

   เงิินลงิทุนในตรัาสิารัทุนที�ไมุ่อื่ย์ู่ในควีามุต้อื่งิการัข้อื่งิตลาด - - (414,420) -   

ไมุ่หมุุนเวีีย์นอื่่�น-เงิินลงิทุนในตรัาสิารัทุนที�ไมุ่อื่ย์ู่

ในควีามุต้อื่งิการัข้อื่งิตลาด	 	 (34,000)	 78,000	 -	 -			

รัาย์ได้ทางิการัเงิิน	 (35,715,526)	 (16,232,364)	 (174,049,345)	 (148,826,375)

ต้นทุนทางิการัเงิิน	 110,166,825	 113,547,822	 100,031,030	 104,749,359	

Notes to the financial statements form an integral part of these statements.

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Profit for the years

ADJUSTMENTS TO RECONCILE PROFIT FOR THE YEARS

TO CASH PROVIDED FROM (USED IN) OPERATIONS

   Income tax expenses

 Adjustment of tax expenses

 Depreciation of plant and equipment

 Depreciation of right-of-use assets

 Amortization of intangible assets

 Amortization of right to use spectrum

 Amortization of pictures rental, plays,

     picture products and copyright charges 

 Write-off of prepaid plays production 

 Write-off of deposit on pictures copyright 

 Write-off of withholding tax

   Write-off of equipment

 Bad debt-Trade accounts receivable

 (Reversal) expected credit loss

    - Trade accounts receivable

 - Short-term loans to related parties

   Decrease in allowance for impairment of prepaid expenses

 Decrease in allowance for diminution of inventories

 Write-off of inventories to expenses

	 (Gain)	loss	on	disposal/unused	equipment	

 Gain on disposal non-current assets held for sale

 Gains on disposal intangible assets

 Gain on sale of plays

 Loss on unused plays

 Unrealized loss on exchange rates

   Dividend income

 Gain on revaluation investments property 

   (Reversal) loss on impairment of investments in subsidiary

 Gain on remeasuring other current financial assets

  - investments in non-marketable securities

   (Gain) loss on remeasuring other non-current financial assets

 - investments in non-marketable securities

   Finance income 

   Finance cost
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STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS (2/5)
BEC WORLD PUBLIC COMPANY LIMITED AND SUBSIDIARIES
For The Year Ended December 31, 2023

BAHT

 CONSOLIDATED SEPARATE  FINANCIAL  STATEMENTS

2023  2022 2023 2022

กรัะแสิเงิินสิดจากกิจกรัรัมุดำเนินงิาน(ต่อื่)	 	

ปรับักรัะทบกำไรัสิำหรับัปีเป็นเงินิสิดรับั(จ่าย์)จากการัดำเนนิงิาน	(ต่อื่)

ค่าใช้้จ่าย์ผลปรัะโย์ช้น์รัะย์ะย์าวีข้อื่งิพนักงิาน	 24,396,874	 20,493,299	 6,823,279	 6,339,530	

สิ่วีนแบ่งิกำไรัจากเงิินลงิทุนในการัรั่วีมุค้า	 (66,295,845)	 	(4,100,378)	 -	 -			

สิ่วีนแบ่งิข้าดทุนข้อื่งิบรัิษีัทย์่อื่ย์ที�เลิกกิจการั	 811,369	 	-	 -	 -			

สิ่วีนแบ่งิข้าดทุนข้อื่งิสิ่วีนได้เสิีย์ที�ไมุ่มุีอื่ำนาจควีบคุมุข้อื่งิ

บรัิษีัทย์่อื่ย์ที�เลิกกิจการั	 304	 -	 -	 	-		

กำไรัจากการัดำเนินงิานก่อื่นการัเปลี�ย์นแปลงิในสิ่วีน

ปรัะกอื่บข้อื่งิสิินทรััพย์์และหนี�สิินดำเนินงิาน	 	2,115,646,172	 2,721,751,135	 187,334,112	 402,029,592	

การัเปลี�ย์นแปลงิในสิ่วีนปรัะกอื่บข้อื่งิสิินทรััพย์์ดำเนินงิาน

(เพิ�มุข้ึ�น)ลดลงิ

ลูกหนี�การัค้าและลูกหนี�หมุุนเวีีย์นอื่่�น	 (32,197,123)	 187,881,775	 (368,661,293)	 (339,712,744)

สิินค้าคงิเหล่อื่	 -	 -	 -	 48,583	

สิินทรััพย์์หมุุนเวีีย์นอื่่�น	 (505,204)	 	6,153,471	 491,632	 1,679,979	

เงิินมุัดจำค่าลิข้สิิทธิ�ภาพย์นตรั์	 -	 (1,000,000)	 -	 -			

ค่าผลิตละครัจ่าย์ล่วีงิหน้า	 -	 8,422,676	 -	 -			

สิินทรััพย์์ไมุ่หมุุนเวีีย์นอื่่�น	 (694,826)	 359,850	 -	 2,934,144	

การัเปลี�ย์นแปลงิในสิ่วีนปรัะกอื่บข้อื่งิหนี�สิินดำเนินงิาน

เพิ�มุข้ึ�น(ลดลงิ)

เจ้าหนี�การัค้าและเจ้าหนี�หมุุนเวีีย์นอื่่�น	 82,169,337		 (37,411,263)	 (5,392,294)	 (11,883,080)

ค่าใช้้จ่าย์ค้างิจ่าย์	 (104,566,146)	 (94,019,788)	 (53,471,536)	 1,490,611	

หนี�สิินหมุุนเวีีย์นอื่่�น	 	(4,964,540)	 (357,383)	 22,722,516	 22,774,061	

สิำรัอื่งิผลปรัะโย์ช้น์รัะย์ะย์าวีข้อื่งิพนักงิาน	 (1,450,200)	 	(2,112,921)	 (1,450,200)	 (205,000)

เงิินสิดรัับ(จ่าย์)จากการัดำเนินงิาน	 2,053,437,470	 2,789,667,552	 (218,427,063)	 79,156,146	

จ่าย์ดอื่กเบี�ย์	 (107,433,408)	 (107,071,231)	 (97,297,613)	 	(98,272,768)

จ่าย์ภาษีีเงิินได้	 (146,639,685)	 (151,468,968)	 (15,375,276)	 (19,408,898)

เงิินสิดรัับจากการัข้อื่ค่นภาษีี	 174,608,057	 188,478,521	 75,257,535	 -			

เงิินสิดสิุทธิได้มุาจาก(ใช้้ไปใน)กิจกรัรัมุดำเนินงิาน	 	 1,973,972,434	 2,719,605,874	 (255,842,417)	 (38,525,520)

Notes to the financial statements form an integral part of these statements.

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES (CONTINUED)

ADJUSTMENTS TO RECONCILE PROFIT FOR THE YEARS

  TO CASH PROVIDED FROM (USED IN) OPERATIONS (CONTINUED)

 Long-term employee benefits expenses 

 Share of profit from joint venture 

 Share of loss on subsidiary dissolution 

 Share of loss on non-controlling interests of   

      subsidiary dissolution 

 Profit from operation before changes in

 operating assets and liabilities items

  

(INCREASE) DECREASE IN OPERATING ASSETS ITEMS

 Trade and other current receivables 

   Inventories 

   Other current assets 

 Deposit on pictures copyright charges 

   Prepaid plays production 

   Other non-current assets

  

INCREASE (DECREASE) IN OPERATING LIABILITIES ITEMS

 Trade and other current payables 

   Accrued expenses 

   Other current liabilities 

 Provision for long-term employee benefits 

 CASH PROVIDED FROM (USED IN) OPERATION 

   Interest expenses paid 

 Income tax expenses paid 

 Proceeds from tax refund 

NET CASH PROVIDED FROM (USED IN) OPERATING ACTIVITIES  

Page 34 of 62

Supporting documents for AGM 2024, Agenda 2

256

STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS (3/5)
BEC WORLD PUBLIC COMPANY LIMITED AND SUBSIDIARIES
For The Year Ended December 31, 2023

BAHT

 CONSOLIDATED SEPARATE  FINANCIAL  STATEMENTS

2023  2022 2023 2022

กรัะแสิเงิินสิดจากกิจกรัรัมุลงิทุน	

สิินทรััพย์์ทางิการัเงิินหมุุนเวีีย์นอื่่�น-เงิินฝากปรัะจำธนาคารัเพิ�มุข้ึ�น	 (1,008,000,000)	 -	 (1,008,000,000)	 -			

รัับดอื่กเบี�ย์	 29,777,870	 15,671,363	 53,063,250	 	82,058,882	

เงิินสิดรัับจากเงิินปันผล	 20,899,707	 -	 20,899,707	 -			

เงิินให้กู้ย์่มุรัะย์ะสิั�นแก่กิจการัที�เกี�ย์วีข้้อื่งิกันลดลงิ	 -	 -	 444,176,498	 2,086,803,438	

เงิินสิดรัับจากการัค่นเงิินลงิทุนในการัรั่วีมุค้า	 	 19,650,000	 -	 19,650,000	 -			

ซึ่่�อื่เงิินลงิทุนในการัรั่วีมุค้า	 	(41,460,000)	 (19,700,000)	 (41,460,000)	 (19,700,000)

ซึ่่�อื่อืุ่ปกรัณ์์เพิ�มุข้ึ�น	 (67,231,796)	 (108,504,658)	 (12,420,084)	 (40,992,734)

เงิินสิดรัับจากการัจำหน่าย์อืุ่ปกรัณ์์	 1,271,028	 4,091,121	 1,271,028	 3,973,818	

เงิินสิดรัับจากการัจำหน่าย์สิินทรััพย์์ไมุ่หมุุนเวีีย์นที�ถี่่อื่ไวี้เพ่�อื่ข้าย์	 -	 	1,037,383	 	-	 1,037,383	

เงิินสิดรัับจากการัจำหน่าย์สิินทรััพย์์ทางิการัเงิินไมุ่หมุุนเวีีย์นอื่่�น	 -	 9,886,110	 -	 9,886,110	

สิินทรััพย์์สิิทธิการัใช้้เพิ�มุข้ึ�น	 (2,813,650)	 (1,732,500)	 (1,309,500)	 (1,732,500)

สิินทรััพย์์ไมุ่มุีตัวีตนเพิ�มุข้ึ�น	 (47,061,958)	 (82,214,749)	 (30,807,800)	 (52,224,998)

เงิินสิดรัับจากการัจำหน่าย์สิินทรััพย์์ไมุ่มุีตัวีตน	 -	 -	 13,440,000	 -			

ค่าเช้่าภาพย์นตรั์	ค่าผลิตภัณ์ฑ์์ภาพย์นตรั์	ค่าละครั

และค่าลิข้สิิทธิ�เพิ�มุข้ึ�น	 (1,634,290,900)		(1,732,527,240)	 (9,197,138)	 (3,378,600)

เงิินสิดรัับจากการัข้าย์ละครั	 65,420	 -	 65,420	 -			

เงิินสิดสิุทธิได้มุาจาก(ใช้้ไปใน)กิจกรัรัมุลงิทุน	 	 (2,729,194,279)		(1,913,993,170)	 (550,628,619)	 2,065,730,799	

กรัะแสิเงิินสิดจากกิจกรัรัมุจัดหาเงิิน

จ่าย์ช้ำรัะหนี�สิินตามุสิัญญาเช้่า	 (60,530,295)	 (61,999,984)	 (23,844,321)	 (25,424,843)

เงิินสิดรัับจากการัอื่อื่กหุ้นกู้	 -	 2,000,000,000	 -	 2,000,000,000	

ค่าใช้้จ่าย์ในการัอื่อื่กหุ้นกู้รัอื่ตัดบัญช้ีเพิ�มุข้ึ�น	 -	 	(9,570,650)	 -	 (9,570,650)

จ่าย์ช้ำรัะหุ้นกู้	 -		(3,000,000,000)	 -	 (3,000,000,000)

เงิินปันผลจ่าย์	 (320,000,000)	 (500,000,000)	 (320,000,000)	 (500,000,000)

เงิินปันผลที�บรัิษีัทย์่อื่ย์จ่าย์ให้สิ่วีนได้เสิีย์ที�ไมุ่มุีอื่ำนาจควีบคุมุ	 (293)	 -	 -	 -			

เงิินสิดสิุทธิใช้้ไปในกิจกรัรัมุจัดหาเงิิน	 (380,530,588)	 (1,571,570,634)	 (343,844,321)	 (1,534,995,493)

เงิินสิดและรัาย์การัเทีย์บเท่าเงิินสิดเพิ�มุข้ึ�น(ลดลงิ)สิุทธิ	 	 (1,135,752,433)	 (765,957,930)	 (1,150,315,357)	 492,209,786	

เงิินสิดและรัาย์การัเทีย์บเท่าเงิินสิด	ณ์	วีันที�	1	มุกรัาคมุ	 3,952,243,384	 4,718,201,314	 3,248,715,717	 	2,756,505,931	

หัก		 เงิินสิดและรัาย์การัเทีย์บเท่าเงิินสิดที�โอื่นอื่อื่ก

จากการัเลิกกิจการัข้อื่งิบรัิษีัทย์่อื่ย์	(งิบปรัะกอื่บ	1)	 	 	(5,763,543)	 -	 -	 -			

เงิินสิดและรัาย์การัเทีย์บเท่าเงิินสิด	ณ์	วีันที�	31	ธันวีาคมุ	 2,810,727,408	 3,952,243,384	 	2,098,400,360	 3,248,715,717	

Notes to the financial statements form an integral part of these statements.

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Increase in other current financial assets - fixed deposit at bank

Interest income 

Proceeds from dividend income

Decrease in short-term loans to related parties 

Proceeds from payback of investments in joint venture

Purchase of investments in joint venture

Purchase of equipment

Proceeds from equipment disposal

Proceeds from non-current assets held for sale disposal

Proceeds from disposal of other non-current financial assets

Increase in right-of-use assets

Increase in intangible assets

Proceeds from intangible assets disposal

Increase in pictures rental, picture products, plays 

and copyright charges

Proceeds from plays disposal

NET CASH PROVIDED FROM (USED IN) INVESTING ACTIVITIES 

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Payment of lease liabilities

Proceeds from issuance of debentures

Increase in deferred debentures issuing costs

Payment of debentures

Dividend payment 

Subsidiary’s dividend paid to non-controlling interests

NET CASH USED IN FINANCING ACTIVITIES 

NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AS AT JANUARY 1, 

LESS  CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS TRANSFERRED OUT FROM

DISSOLUTION OF SUBSIDIARY (SUPPLEMENTARY STATEMENTS 1)

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AS AT DECEMBER 31, 
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STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS (2/5)
BEC WORLD PUBLIC COMPANY LIMITED AND SUBSIDIARIES
For The Year Ended December 31, 2023

BAHT

 CONSOLIDATED SEPARATE  FINANCIAL  STATEMENTS

2023  2022 2023 2022

กรัะแสิเงิินสิดจากกิจกรัรัมุดำเนินงิาน(ต่อื่)	 	

ปรับักรัะทบกำไรัสิำหรับัปีเป็นเงินิสิดรับั(จ่าย์)จากการัดำเนนิงิาน	(ต่อื่)

ค่าใช้้จ่าย์ผลปรัะโย์ช้น์รัะย์ะย์าวีข้อื่งิพนักงิาน	 24,396,874	 20,493,299	 6,823,279	 6,339,530	

สิ่วีนแบ่งิกำไรัจากเงิินลงิทุนในการัรั่วีมุค้า	 (66,295,845)	 	(4,100,378)	 -	 -			

สิ่วีนแบ่งิข้าดทุนข้อื่งิบรัิษีัทย์่อื่ย์ที�เลิกกิจการั	 811,369	 	-	 -	 -			

สิ่วีนแบ่งิข้าดทุนข้อื่งิสิ่วีนได้เสิีย์ที�ไมุ่มุีอื่ำนาจควีบคุมุข้อื่งิ

บรัิษีัทย์่อื่ย์ที�เลิกกิจการั	 304	 -	 -	 	-		

กำไรัจากการัดำเนินงิานก่อื่นการัเปลี�ย์นแปลงิในสิ่วีน

ปรัะกอื่บข้อื่งิสิินทรััพย์์และหนี�สิินดำเนินงิาน	 	2,115,646,172	 2,721,751,135	 187,334,112	 402,029,592	

การัเปลี�ย์นแปลงิในสิ่วีนปรัะกอื่บข้อื่งิสิินทรััพย์์ดำเนินงิาน

(เพิ�มุข้ึ�น)ลดลงิ

ลูกหนี�การัค้าและลูกหนี�หมุุนเวีีย์นอื่่�น	 (32,197,123)	 187,881,775	 (368,661,293)	 (339,712,744)

สิินค้าคงิเหล่อื่	 -	 -	 -	 48,583	

สิินทรััพย์์หมุุนเวีีย์นอื่่�น	 (505,204)	 	6,153,471	 491,632	 1,679,979	

เงิินมุัดจำค่าลิข้สิิทธิ�ภาพย์นตรั์	 -	 (1,000,000)	 -	 -			

ค่าผลิตละครัจ่าย์ล่วีงิหน้า	 -	 8,422,676	 -	 -			

สิินทรััพย์์ไมุ่หมุุนเวีีย์นอื่่�น	 (694,826)	 359,850	 -	 2,934,144	

การัเปลี�ย์นแปลงิในสิ่วีนปรัะกอื่บข้อื่งิหนี�สิินดำเนินงิาน

เพิ�มุข้ึ�น(ลดลงิ)

เจ้าหนี�การัค้าและเจ้าหนี�หมุุนเวีีย์นอื่่�น	 82,169,337		 (37,411,263)	 (5,392,294)	 (11,883,080)

ค่าใช้้จ่าย์ค้างิจ่าย์	 (104,566,146)	 (94,019,788)	 (53,471,536)	 1,490,611	

หนี�สิินหมุุนเวีีย์นอื่่�น	 	(4,964,540)	 (357,383)	 22,722,516	 22,774,061	

สิำรัอื่งิผลปรัะโย์ช้น์รัะย์ะย์าวีข้อื่งิพนักงิาน	 (1,450,200)	 	(2,112,921)	 (1,450,200)	 (205,000)

เงิินสิดรัับ(จ่าย์)จากการัดำเนินงิาน	 2,053,437,470	 2,789,667,552	 (218,427,063)	 79,156,146	

จ่าย์ดอื่กเบี�ย์	 (107,433,408)	 (107,071,231)	 (97,297,613)	 	(98,272,768)

จ่าย์ภาษีีเงิินได้	 (146,639,685)	 (151,468,968)	 (15,375,276)	 (19,408,898)

เงิินสิดรัับจากการัข้อื่ค่นภาษีี	 174,608,057	 188,478,521	 75,257,535	 -			

เงิินสิดสิุทธิได้มุาจาก(ใช้้ไปใน)กิจกรัรัมุดำเนินงิาน	 	 1,973,972,434	 2,719,605,874	 (255,842,417)	 (38,525,520)

Notes to the financial statements form an integral part of these statements.

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES (CONTINUED)

ADJUSTMENTS TO RECONCILE PROFIT FOR THE YEARS

  TO CASH PROVIDED FROM (USED IN) OPERATIONS (CONTINUED)

 Long-term employee benefits expenses 

 Share of profit from joint venture 

 Share of loss on subsidiary dissolution 

 Share of loss on non-controlling interests of   

      subsidiary dissolution 

 Profit from operation before changes in

 operating assets and liabilities items

  

(INCREASE) DECREASE IN OPERATING ASSETS ITEMS

 Trade and other current receivables 

   Inventories 

   Other current assets 

 Deposit on pictures copyright charges 

   Prepaid plays production 

   Other non-current assets

  

INCREASE (DECREASE) IN OPERATING LIABILITIES ITEMS

 Trade and other current payables 

   Accrued expenses 

   Other current liabilities 

 Provision for long-term employee benefits 

 CASH PROVIDED FROM (USED IN) OPERATION 

   Interest expenses paid 

 Income tax expenses paid 

 Proceeds from tax refund 

NET CASH PROVIDED FROM (USED IN) OPERATING ACTIVITIES  
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STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS (3/5)
BEC WORLD PUBLIC COMPANY LIMITED AND SUBSIDIARIES
For The Year Ended December 31, 2023

BAHT

 CONSOLIDATED SEPARATE  FINANCIAL  STATEMENTS

2023  2022 2023 2022

กรัะแสิเงิินสิดจากกิจกรัรัมุลงิทุน	

สิินทรััพย์์ทางิการัเงิินหมุุนเวีีย์นอื่่�น-เงิินฝากปรัะจำธนาคารัเพิ�มุข้ึ�น	 (1,008,000,000)	 -	 (1,008,000,000)	 -			

รัับดอื่กเบี�ย์	 29,777,870	 15,671,363	 53,063,250	 	82,058,882	

เงิินสิดรัับจากเงิินปันผล	 20,899,707	 -	 20,899,707	 -			

เงิินให้กู้ย์่มุรัะย์ะสิั�นแก่กิจการัที�เกี�ย์วีข้้อื่งิกันลดลงิ	 -	 -	 444,176,498	 2,086,803,438	

เงิินสิดรัับจากการัค่นเงิินลงิทุนในการัรั่วีมุค้า	 	 19,650,000	 -	 19,650,000	 -			

ซึ่่�อื่เงิินลงิทุนในการัรั่วีมุค้า	 	(41,460,000)	 (19,700,000)	 (41,460,000)	 (19,700,000)

ซึ่่�อื่อืุ่ปกรัณ์์เพิ�มุข้ึ�น	 (67,231,796)	 (108,504,658)	 (12,420,084)	 (40,992,734)

เงิินสิดรัับจากการัจำหน่าย์อืุ่ปกรัณ์์	 1,271,028	 4,091,121	 1,271,028	 3,973,818	

เงิินสิดรัับจากการัจำหน่าย์สิินทรััพย์์ไมุ่หมุุนเวีีย์นที�ถี่่อื่ไวี้เพ่�อื่ข้าย์	 -	 	1,037,383	 	-	 1,037,383	

เงิินสิดรัับจากการัจำหน่าย์สิินทรััพย์์ทางิการัเงิินไมุ่หมุุนเวีีย์นอื่่�น	 -	 9,886,110	 -	 9,886,110	

สิินทรััพย์์สิิทธิการัใช้้เพิ�มุข้ึ�น	 (2,813,650)	 (1,732,500)	 (1,309,500)	 (1,732,500)

สิินทรััพย์์ไมุ่มุีตัวีตนเพิ�มุข้ึ�น	 (47,061,958)	 (82,214,749)	 (30,807,800)	 (52,224,998)

เงิินสิดรัับจากการัจำหน่าย์สิินทรััพย์์ไมุ่มุีตัวีตน	 -	 -	 13,440,000	 -			

ค่าเช้่าภาพย์นตรั์	ค่าผลิตภัณ์ฑ์์ภาพย์นตรั์	ค่าละครั

และค่าลิข้สิิทธิ�เพิ�มุข้ึ�น	 (1,634,290,900)		(1,732,527,240)	 (9,197,138)	 (3,378,600)

เงิินสิดรัับจากการัข้าย์ละครั	 65,420	 -	 65,420	 -			

เงิินสิดสิุทธิได้มุาจาก(ใช้้ไปใน)กิจกรัรัมุลงิทุน	 	 (2,729,194,279)		(1,913,993,170)	 (550,628,619)	 2,065,730,799	

กรัะแสิเงิินสิดจากกิจกรัรัมุจัดหาเงิิน

จ่าย์ช้ำรัะหนี�สิินตามุสิัญญาเช้่า	 (60,530,295)	 (61,999,984)	 (23,844,321)	 (25,424,843)

เงิินสิดรัับจากการัอื่อื่กหุ้นกู้	 -	 2,000,000,000	 -	 2,000,000,000	

ค่าใช้้จ่าย์ในการัอื่อื่กหุ้นกู้รัอื่ตัดบัญช้ีเพิ�มุข้ึ�น	 -	 	(9,570,650)	 -	 (9,570,650)

จ่าย์ช้ำรัะหุ้นกู้	 -		(3,000,000,000)	 -	 (3,000,000,000)

เงิินปันผลจ่าย์	 (320,000,000)	 (500,000,000)	 (320,000,000)	 (500,000,000)

เงิินปันผลที�บรัิษีัทย์่อื่ย์จ่าย์ให้สิ่วีนได้เสิีย์ที�ไมุ่มุีอื่ำนาจควีบคุมุ	 (293)	 -	 -	 -			

เงิินสิดสิุทธิใช้้ไปในกิจกรัรัมุจัดหาเงิิน	 (380,530,588)	 (1,571,570,634)	 (343,844,321)	 (1,534,995,493)

เงิินสิดและรัาย์การัเทีย์บเท่าเงิินสิดเพิ�มุข้ึ�น(ลดลงิ)สิุทธิ	 	 (1,135,752,433)	 (765,957,930)	 (1,150,315,357)	 492,209,786	

เงิินสิดและรัาย์การัเทีย์บเท่าเงิินสิด	ณ์	วีันที�	1	มุกรัาคมุ	 3,952,243,384	 4,718,201,314	 3,248,715,717	 	2,756,505,931	

หัก		 เงิินสิดและรัาย์การัเทีย์บเท่าเงิินสิดที�โอื่นอื่อื่ก

จากการัเลิกกิจการัข้อื่งิบรัิษีัทย์่อื่ย์	(งิบปรัะกอื่บ	1)	 	 	(5,763,543)	 -	 -	 -			

เงิินสิดและรัาย์การัเทีย์บเท่าเงิินสิด	ณ์	วีันที�	31	ธันวีาคมุ	 2,810,727,408	 3,952,243,384	 	2,098,400,360	 3,248,715,717	

Notes to the financial statements form an integral part of these statements.

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Increase in other current financial assets - fixed deposit at bank

Interest income 

Proceeds from dividend income

Decrease in short-term loans to related parties 

Proceeds from payback of investments in joint venture

Purchase of investments in joint venture

Purchase of equipment

Proceeds from equipment disposal

Proceeds from non-current assets held for sale disposal

Proceeds from disposal of other non-current financial assets

Increase in right-of-use assets

Increase in intangible assets

Proceeds from intangible assets disposal

Increase in pictures rental, picture products, plays 

and copyright charges

Proceeds from plays disposal

NET CASH PROVIDED FROM (USED IN) INVESTING ACTIVITIES 

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Payment of lease liabilities

Proceeds from issuance of debentures

Increase in deferred debentures issuing costs

Payment of debentures

Dividend payment 

Subsidiary’s dividend paid to non-controlling interests

NET CASH USED IN FINANCING ACTIVITIES 

NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AS AT JANUARY 1, 

LESS  CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS TRANSFERRED OUT FROM

DISSOLUTION OF SUBSIDIARY (SUPPLEMENTARY STATEMENTS 1)

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AS AT DECEMBER 31, 
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STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS (4/5)
BEC WORLD PUBLIC COMPANY LIMITED AND SUBSIDIARIES
For The Year Ended December 31, 2023

BAHT

 CONSOLIDATED SEPARATE  FINANCIAL  STATEMENTS

2023  2022 2023 2022

ข้้อื่มุูลเพิ�มุเติมุปรัะกอื่บงิบกรัะแสิเงิินสิด	 	

รัาย์การัที�ไมุ่ใช้่เงิินสิดปรัะกอื่บด้วีย์

โอื่นดอื่กเบี�ย์ค้างิรัับเป็นเงิินให้กู้ย์่มุรัะย์ะสิั�น

แก่กิจการัที�เกี�ย์วีข้้อื่งิกัน	 	 -	 -	 114,627,879	 91,908,801	

โอื่นภาษีีเงิินได้ถีู่กหัก	ณ์	ที�จ่าย์เกินหนึ�งิปีเป็นสิินทรััพย์์

ไมุ่หมุุนเวีีย์น	 73,916,485	 	131,675,613	 19,408,898	 46,102,520	

ภาษีีถีู่กหัก	ณ์	ที�จ่าย์ลดลงิจากปรัับปรัุงิภาษีี	 	 12,138	 860,529	 -	 -			

โอื่นสิินทรััพย์์หมุุนเวีีย์นอื่่�นเป็นค่าเช้่าภาพย์นตรั์	ค่าผลิตภัณ์ฑ์์

ภาพย์นตรั์	ค่าละครั	และค่าลิข้สิิทธิ�รัอื่ตัดจำหน่าย์	 2,122,776	 -	 	2,122,776	 -			

โอื่นเงิินมุัดจำค่าลิข้สิิทธิ�ภาพย์นตรั์เป็นค่าเช้่าภาพย์นตรั์	

   ค่าผลิตภัณ์ฑ์์ภาพย์นตรั์	ค่าละครั	และลิข้สิิทธิ�รัอื่ตัดจำหน่าย์ 13,029,063 37,573,402 12,029,062 1,137,475 

โอื่นค่าเสิ่�อื่มุรัาคาอืุ่ปกรัณ์์เป็นค่าละครัรัอื่ตัดจำหน่าย์		 1,979,422	 987,023	 -	 	-			

	 รัอื่ตัดจำหน่าย์	 	 173,115	 154,164	 -	 -			

อืุ่ปกรัณ์์เพิ�มุข้ึ�นจากเจ้าหนี�ทรััพย์์สิิน	 1,735,532	 8,725,514	 92,271	 2,027,305	

โปรัแกรัมุคอื่มุพิวีเตอื่รั์เพิ�มุข้ึ�นจากเจ้าหนี�ทรััพย์์สิิน	 	 7,607,921	 	2,136,870	 5,985,000	 14,000	

ค่าเช้่าภาพย์นตรั์	ค่าผลิตภัณ์ฑ์์ภาพย์นตรั์	ค่าละครั	

	 	 	 และลิข้สิิทธิ�รัอื่ตัดจำหน่าย์เพิ�มุข้ึ�นจากเจ้าหนี�ทรััพย์์สิิน	 -	 3,000,000	 -	 -			

โอื่นเงิินลงิทุนในบรัิษีัทย์่อื่ย์ที�เลิกกิจการัเป็นเงิินลงิทุน

ในตรัาสิารัทุนที�ไมุ่อื่ย์ู่ในควีามุต้อื่งิการัข้อื่งิตลาด	 5,414,350	 -	 4,999,930	 -			

เงิินลงิทุนในตรัาสิารัทุนในควีามุต้อื่งิการัข้อื่งิตลาด

-	ผลข้าดทุนที�รัับรัู้ในสิ่วีนข้อื่งิผู้ถี่่อื่หุ้น	 	 -	 (53,606,390)	 -		 (53,606,390)

  ผลกรัะทบจากการัปรัับปรัุงิปรัะมุาณ์การัผลปรัะโย์ช้น์ข้อื่งิพนักงิาน

-	สิินทรััพย์์ภาษีีเงิินได้รัอื่การัตัดบัญช้ี(เพิ�มุข้ึ�น)ลดลงิ	 3,838,729	 -	 (2,664,810)	 -			

   - สิำรัอื่งิผลปรัะโย์ช้น์รัะย์ะย์าวีข้อื่งิพนักงิานเพิ�มุข้ึ�น(ลดลงิ)	 (19,193,649)	 -	 13,324,048	 -			

-	กำไรัสิะสิมุเพิ�มุข้ึ�น(ลดลงิ)	 15,353,950	 -	 (10,659,238)	 -			

-	สิ่วีนได้เสิีย์ที�ไมุ่มุีอื่ำนาจควีบคุมุเพิ�มุข้ึ�น	 970	 -	 -	 -			

โอื่นสิำรัอื่งิผลปรัะโย์ช้น์รัะย์ะย์าวีข้อื่งิพนักงิานที�ย์ังิไมุ่จ่าย์ช้ำรัะ

เป็นค่าใช้้จ่าย์ค้างิจ่าย์	 8,597,844	 5,851,408	 4,229,330	 230,820	

สิินทรััพย์์สิิทธิการัใช้้เพิ�มุข้ึ�นจากหนี�สิินตามุสิัญญาเช้่า		 9,305,265	 	391,740,016	 4,469,430	 152,855,017	

Notes to the financial statements form an integral part of these statements.

ADDITIONAL DISCLOSURE ITEMS TO CASH FLOWS STATEMENTS :

NON-CASH ITEMS CONSIST OF

Transferred accrued interest income to short-term loans

to related parties 

Transferred withholding tax over one year 

  to non-current assets

Decrease in withholding tax from adjustment of tax

Transferred other current assets to deferred pictures rental,

picture products, plays and copyright charges

Transferred deposit on pictures copyright to deferred 

  pictures rental, picture products, plays and copyright charges

Transferred depreciation of equipment to deferred plays

Transferred amortization of intangible assets to deferred plays

Increase in equipment from assets payable

Increase in computer program from assets payable

Increase in deferred pictures rental, picture product,

    plays and copyright charges from assets payable 

Transferred investments in subsidiary dissolution

to investments in non-marketable securities

Investments in marketable securities

  - Loss on remeasuring and recording in shareholders’ equity

 Effect of adjusted actuarial estimates from employee benefit plan:-

- (Increase) decrease deferred tax assets 

  - Increase (decrease) provision for long-term employee benefits

- Increase (decrease) retained earnings

- Increase non-controlling interests

 Transferred provision for long-term employee benefits unpaid

  to accrued expenses

Increase in right-of-use assets from lease liabilities  
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STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS (5/5)
BEC WORLD PUBLIC COMPANY LIMITED AND SUBSIDIARIES
For The Year Ended December 31, 2023

Notes to the financial statements form an integral part of these statements.

SUPPLEMENTARY STATEMENT 1 

Dissolution of subsidiary

 On December 25, 2023, BANGKOK TELEVISION COMPANY LIMITED, the Company’s subsidiary has dissolved.

Therefore, outstanding assets and liabilities are transferred out from the consolidation, as follows : 

BAHT

Cash and cash equivalents 5,763,543 

Other current receivables 13 

Accrued	interest	income	 284	

Current tax assets 191 

Other	non-current	assets	 21,378,264	

Other	current	payables	 (1,489)

 Accrued expenses (15,000)

Non-controlling	interests	 	(380)

Investments in subsidiary at the beginning of the year 27,125,426 

Share	of	loss	on	subsidiary’s	dissolution	 (811,369)

Dividend	payment	 (20,899,707)

Investments in subsidiary as at dissolution date   5,414,350 

Transferred investment in subsidiary dissolution to  investments in non-marketable securities 

 - related company (5,414,350)

Investments in subsidiary as at dissolution date -  
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STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS (4/5)
BEC WORLD PUBLIC COMPANY LIMITED AND SUBSIDIARIES
For The Year Ended December 31, 2023

BAHT

 CONSOLIDATED SEPARATE  FINANCIAL  STATEMENTS

2023  2022 2023 2022

ข้้อื่มุูลเพิ�มุเติมุปรัะกอื่บงิบกรัะแสิเงิินสิด	 	

รัาย์การัที�ไมุ่ใช้่เงิินสิดปรัะกอื่บด้วีย์

โอื่นดอื่กเบี�ย์ค้างิรัับเป็นเงิินให้กู้ย์่มุรัะย์ะสิั�น

แก่กิจการัที�เกี�ย์วีข้้อื่งิกัน	 	 -	 -	 114,627,879	 91,908,801	

โอื่นภาษีีเงิินได้ถีู่กหัก	ณ์	ที�จ่าย์เกินหนึ�งิปีเป็นสิินทรััพย์์

ไมุ่หมุุนเวีีย์น	 73,916,485	 	131,675,613	 19,408,898	 46,102,520	

ภาษีีถีู่กหัก	ณ์	ที�จ่าย์ลดลงิจากปรัับปรัุงิภาษีี	 	 12,138	 860,529	 -	 -			

โอื่นสิินทรััพย์์หมุุนเวีีย์นอื่่�นเป็นค่าเช้่าภาพย์นตรั์	ค่าผลิตภัณ์ฑ์์

ภาพย์นตรั์	ค่าละครั	และค่าลิข้สิิทธิ�รัอื่ตัดจำหน่าย์	 2,122,776	 -	 	2,122,776	 -			

โอื่นเงิินมุัดจำค่าลิข้สิิทธิ�ภาพย์นตรั์เป็นค่าเช้่าภาพย์นตรั์	

   ค่าผลิตภัณ์ฑ์์ภาพย์นตรั์	ค่าละครั	และลิข้สิิทธิ�รัอื่ตัดจำหน่าย์ 13,029,063 37,573,402 12,029,062 1,137,475 

โอื่นค่าเสิ่�อื่มุรัาคาอืุ่ปกรัณ์์เป็นค่าละครัรัอื่ตัดจำหน่าย์		 1,979,422	 987,023	 -	 	-			

	 รัอื่ตัดจำหน่าย์	 	 173,115	 154,164	 -	 -			

อืุ่ปกรัณ์์เพิ�มุข้ึ�นจากเจ้าหนี�ทรััพย์์สิิน	 1,735,532	 8,725,514	 92,271	 2,027,305	

โปรัแกรัมุคอื่มุพิวีเตอื่รั์เพิ�มุข้ึ�นจากเจ้าหนี�ทรััพย์์สิิน	 	 7,607,921	 	2,136,870	 5,985,000	 14,000	

ค่าเช้่าภาพย์นตรั์	ค่าผลิตภัณ์ฑ์์ภาพย์นตรั์	ค่าละครั	

	 	 	 และลิข้สิิทธิ�รัอื่ตัดจำหน่าย์เพิ�มุข้ึ�นจากเจ้าหนี�ทรััพย์์สิิน	 -	 3,000,000	 -	 -			

โอื่นเงิินลงิทุนในบรัิษีัทย์่อื่ย์ที�เลิกกิจการัเป็นเงิินลงิทุน

ในตรัาสิารัทุนที�ไมุ่อื่ย์ู่ในควีามุต้อื่งิการัข้อื่งิตลาด	 5,414,350	 -	 4,999,930	 -			

เงิินลงิทุนในตรัาสิารัทุนในควีามุต้อื่งิการัข้อื่งิตลาด

-	ผลข้าดทุนที�รัับรัู้ในสิ่วีนข้อื่งิผู้ถี่่อื่หุ้น	 	 -	 (53,606,390)	 -		 (53,606,390)

  ผลกรัะทบจากการัปรัับปรัุงิปรัะมุาณ์การัผลปรัะโย์ช้น์ข้อื่งิพนักงิาน

-	สิินทรััพย์์ภาษีีเงิินได้รัอื่การัตัดบัญช้ี(เพิ�มุข้ึ�น)ลดลงิ	 3,838,729	 -	 (2,664,810)	 -			

   - สิำรัอื่งิผลปรัะโย์ช้น์รัะย์ะย์าวีข้อื่งิพนักงิานเพิ�มุข้ึ�น(ลดลงิ)	 (19,193,649)	 -	 13,324,048	 -			

-	กำไรัสิะสิมุเพิ�มุข้ึ�น(ลดลงิ)	 15,353,950	 -	 (10,659,238)	 -			

-	สิ่วีนได้เสิีย์ที�ไมุ่มุีอื่ำนาจควีบคุมุเพิ�มุข้ึ�น	 970	 -	 -	 -			

โอื่นสิำรัอื่งิผลปรัะโย์ช้น์รัะย์ะย์าวีข้อื่งิพนักงิานที�ย์ังิไมุ่จ่าย์ช้ำรัะ

เป็นค่าใช้้จ่าย์ค้างิจ่าย์	 8,597,844	 5,851,408	 4,229,330	 230,820	

สิินทรััพย์์สิิทธิการัใช้้เพิ�มุข้ึ�นจากหนี�สิินตามุสิัญญาเช้่า		 9,305,265	 	391,740,016	 4,469,430	 152,855,017	

Notes to the financial statements form an integral part of these statements.

ADDITIONAL DISCLOSURE ITEMS TO CASH FLOWS STATEMENTS :

NON-CASH ITEMS CONSIST OF

Transferred accrued interest income to short-term loans

to related parties 

Transferred withholding tax over one year 

  to non-current assets

Decrease in withholding tax from adjustment of tax

Transferred other current assets to deferred pictures rental,

picture products, plays and copyright charges

Transferred deposit on pictures copyright to deferred 

  pictures rental, picture products, plays and copyright charges

Transferred depreciation of equipment to deferred plays

Transferred amortization of intangible assets to deferred plays

Increase in equipment from assets payable

Increase in computer program from assets payable

Increase in deferred pictures rental, picture product,

    plays and copyright charges from assets payable 

Transferred investments in subsidiary dissolution

to investments in non-marketable securities

Investments in marketable securities

  - Loss on remeasuring and recording in shareholders’ equity

 Effect of adjusted actuarial estimates from employee benefit plan:-

- (Increase) decrease deferred tax assets 

  - Increase (decrease) provision for long-term employee benefits

- Increase (decrease) retained earnings

- Increase non-controlling interests

 Transferred provision for long-term employee benefits unpaid

  to accrued expenses

Increase in right-of-use assets from lease liabilities  
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STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS (5/5)
BEC WORLD PUBLIC COMPANY LIMITED AND SUBSIDIARIES
For The Year Ended December 31, 2023

Notes to the financial statements form an integral part of these statements.

SUPPLEMENTARY STATEMENT 1 

Dissolution of subsidiary

 On December 25, 2023, BANGKOK TELEVISION COMPANY LIMITED, the Company’s subsidiary has dissolved.

Therefore, outstanding assets and liabilities are transferred out from the consolidation, as follows : 

BAHT

Cash and cash equivalents 5,763,543 

Other current receivables 13 

Accrued	interest	income	 284	

Current tax assets 191 

Other	non-current	assets	 21,378,264	

Other	current	payables	 (1,489)

 Accrued expenses (15,000)

Non-controlling	interests	 	(380)

Investments in subsidiary at the beginning of the year 27,125,426 

Share	of	loss	on	subsidiary’s	dissolution	 (811,369)

Dividend	payment	 (20,899,707)

Investments in subsidiary as at dissolution date   5,414,350 

Transferred investment in subsidiary dissolution to  investments in non-marketable securities 

 - related company (5,414,350)

Investments in subsidiary as at dissolution date -  
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Enclosure 1 

Guidelines for attending of Electronic Meeting by Inventech Connect 
Shareholders and proxies wishing to attend the meeting can proceed according to the procedure for 

submitting the request form to attend the meeting via electronic media as follows :  

 Step for requesting Username & Password from via e-Request system 
1. The Shareholders must submit a request to attend the meeting by Electronic Means via Web Browser at

https://pro.inventech.co.th/BEC171395R/#/homepage or scan QR Code    and follow the steps as 
shown in the picture 

2. For Shareholders who would like to attend the Meeting either through the Electronic Means by yourself or
someone who is not the provided independent directors, please note that the electronic registration will be 
available from 19 April 2024 at 8:30 a.m. and shall be closed on 26 April 2024 Until the end of the meeting. 

Appointment of Proxy to the Company's Directors 
For Shareholders who authorize one of the Company’s Independent Directors to attend and vote on his or her behalf, 
The Shareholders can submit a request to attend the meeting by Electronic Means of the specified procedures or 
send the proxy form together with the required documents to the Company by mail to the following address. The 
proxy form and required documents shall be delivered to the Company by 23 April 2024,  at 5.00 p.m. 

BEC WORLD PUBLIC COMPANY LIMITED 
Company Secretary  
Address:  3199 Maleenont Tower, Floor 30, Rama 4 Rd., Klongton, Klongtoey, Bangkok 10110 Thailand 

3. The electronic conference system will be available on 26 April 2024 at 12:00 p.m. (2 hours before the opening
of the meeting). Shareholders or proxy holders shall use the provided Username and Password and follow the 
instruction manual to access the system. 

If you have any problems with the software, please contact Inventech Call Center 
02-931-9142 

@inventechconnect 

The system available during 19 – 26 April 2024 at 08.30 a.m. – 05.30 p.m. 
(Specifically excludes holidays and public holidays) 

Report a problem 

.1 Click link URL or scan QR Code in the letter notice Annual General Meeting 

.
2 Choose type request for request form to 4 step 

Please wait for an email information detail of meeting and Password ** Merge user accounts, please using  
the same email and phone number ** 

Step 1 Fill in the information shown on the registration 
pageStep 2 Fill in the information for verify 
Step 3 Verify via OTP 
Step 4 Successful transaction, The system will display information again to 
verify the exactitude of the information 

@inventechconnect 

.
5

3 
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Enclosure 1 

Step to ask questions via Inventech Connect 
Select which agenda

Type the question then click “Send” 
1 

Ask the question via video 
record.

2
 Click on “Conference”

 Click on “OK” for confirm your queue
 Please wait for the queue for you then your can

open the microphone and camera

* Note   Operation of the electronic conferencing system and Inventech Connect systems. Check internet of shareholder or proxy include
equipment and/or program that can use for best performance. Please use equipment and/or program as the follows to use systems. 

1. Internet speed requirements
- High-Definition Video: Must be have internet speed at 2.5 Mbps (Speed internet that recommend).
- High Quality Video: Must be have internet speed at 1.0 Mbps.
- Standard Quality Video: Must be have internet speed at 0.5 Mbps.

2. Equipment requirements.
- Smartphone/Tablet that use IOS or android OS.
- PC/Laptop that use Windows or Mac OS.

3. Requirement Browser Chrome (Recommend) / Safari / Microsoft Edge ** The system does not supported internet explorer. 

.
3 

Select which agenda that you want to vote 

.6 
The system will display status your latest vote 

To cancel the last vote, please press the button “Cancel latest vote (This means that your most recent vote 
will be equal to not voting, or your vote will be determined by the agenda result) Shareholders can conduct 
a review of the votes on an agenda basis. When the voting results for that agenda are closed. 

How to use Inventech Connect 

Click the voting button as you choose 
.

5 
.

4 

Click on “Vote” button 

Click on “Question” button

Ask a question 


Steps for registration for attending the meeting (e-Register) and voting process (e-Voting) 

Click on “Register” button, the system has already registered 
and counted as a quorum. .

2 
Get email and password that you received from your email or request OTP .

1 

User Manual e-Request User Manual e-Voting 

.7 

Click on “Join Attendance”, Then click on “Join Meeting” button 

Video of using Inventech Connect 
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Enclosure 1 

Guidelines for attending of Electronic Meeting 

User Inventech Connect System Inspector 
Scan QR code from the 

invitation or link to website 

Fill in request from 
(e-Request) 

 Send request form 

 Receive email notify reply 

 
Consider for 

approves 
request 

 Receive email notify reject 

 Edit data and attach file 

 
Receive email approve 

then receive password and  
link registration attend the meeting 

 Click link “Register” for attend the 
meeting (e-Register) 

 
The number of shares  

will be counted as a quorum 
Watch live broadcast and vote 

(e-Voting) 

Disapproved 

Approved 
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Condition of use 
In case Merge account/change account 

In case filing request multiple by using the same email and phone number, the systems will merge account or in 
case user has more than 1 account, you can click on "Change account" and the previous account will still count the base 
in the meeting. 
In case Exit the meeting 

Attendees can click on “Register for exit the quorum”, the systems will be number of your shares out from the 
meeting base. 
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